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gid Jda o TaiT JIRET appreciation and celebration

IIgedl Ud 3cHd HIdeTgT &l of the Cinemas of India.
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I3 H gt oAl & FHIT TIT GicHied & TRI SHD!
fafaearqul Heplad a1 373,

Mission

NFDC aims at fostering excellence in cinema and promoting
the diversity of its culture by supporting and encouraging films
made in various Indian languages.
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About us

The National Film Development Corporation Ltd. (NFDC) is a
Public Sector Undertaking under the administrative control of the
Ministry of Information & Broadcasting, Government of India. It
was incorporated in the year 1975 with the primary objective of
planning and promoting an organized, efficient and integrated
development of the Indian film industry in accordance with the
national economic policy and objectives laid down by the Central
Government from time to time. NFDC was reincorporated in
the year 1980, by merging the Film Finance Corporation (FFC)
and the Indian Motion Picture Export Corporation (IMPEC) with
NFDC.

NFDC has so far funded/produced over 300 films. These films,
in various Indian languages, have been widely acclaimed and
have won many national and international awards. Some of the
landmark films of NFDC in the past include Gandhi (English)
by Sir Richard Attenborough, Salaam Bombay (Hindi) by Mira
Nair, Mirch Masala (Hindi) by Ketan Mehta, Jaane Bhi Do
Yaaron (Hindi) by Kundan Shah, The Making Of The Mahatma
(English/Hindi) by Shyam Benegal, Rudaali (Hindi) by Kalpana
Lajmi, Ghare Bhaire (Bengali) by Satyajit Ray, That Girl in Yellow
Boots (Hindi) by Anurag Kashyap, Shanghai (Hindi) by Dibakar
Banerjee, Anhey Ghore Da Daan (Punjabi) by Gurvinder Singh,
The Good Road (Gujarati) by Gyan Correa, The Lunch Box by
Ritesh Batra etc.

NFDC encourages the good cinema movement across the multi-
lingual cinemas of India by producing and co-producing feature
films, script development, training facilities across the spectrum
of filmmaking, promotion of films in markets abroad, and creation
of platforms for greater interaction between Indian filmmakers
and members of the international film fraternity through Film
Bazaar organized by NFDC alongside the International Film
Festival of India in Goa since November, 2007.

The distribution activity straddles various established and
emerging formats for distribution and exhibition of films ranging
from the conventional theatrical release to digital formats such
as VoD thus making high quality cinema available at reasonable
rates to Indian viewers.

NFDC also provides 360 degrees of integrated marketing
solutions for government agencies and provides advertisements,
documentaries, short films, TV series, web advertisements, radio
series and thematic musical anthems
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Stills from film Beyond the Known World
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Film Production

The Production Department at NFDC supports and drives
NFDC’s mission to develop new talent and to promote Indian
culture through production of films by first time feature filmmakers
and through Co-producing good quality films in partnership with
Indian and International filmmakers. The successful execution
of the 11th & 12th Five Year Plan Schemes of the Ministry
of Information & Broadcasting — Film Production in various
Regional/Indian languages- is a means to showcase India’s most
imaginative, diverse and vibrant film culture.

18 first time filmmakers were introduced through the Plan
Scheme and films across 14 Indian languages including Hindi,
were Produced/Co-produced, thus supporting a community of
multitalented filmmakers, across diverse cultures.

NFDC endeavours to support and drive the Plan Scheme through
production of films by first time filmmakers and co-production
with emerging filmmakers and international producers. During
the financial year 2017-18, NFDC has signed the co-production
agreement with New Zealand and Indian producer for the film
Beyond the Known World directed by Pan Nalin. The film is in
post-production stage



NFDC's official OTT Platform

Cinemas of India
India's Largest Collection of pathbreaking Award Winning Movies
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Distribution

NFDC has been at the forefront to promote and develop Indian
independent cinema globally. The idea to empower Indian
Independent Cinema with all possible modes of distribution led
to the launch of the Cinemas of India Video On Demand platform
in 2012. The VoD platform offers immense value in terms of its
content to its patrons. The brand includes release of a film across
traditional platforms (Theatrical, Home Video and Satellite) and
emerging platforms (Video on Demand, DTH and Airlines).
Distribution Department runs a year round social media and
email marketing promotions to widen the subscriber base and
increase the reach of the platform, which presently streams 130+
titles year-on-year.

Dedicated promotion of Cinemas of India Video on Demand
platform has resulted in a 300% rise in subscriptions from 2016.
As per analytics we have reported a rise in new website visitors,
new subscribers and a positive increase in terms of returning
visitors. The spike in the number of Returning visitors is significant
for a 130+ films strong VoD platform.

The NFDC library catalogue is streaming on renowned partner

platforms such as Hotstar, JIO Movies, Zee Entertainment,
Amazon Prime and Netflix.

Music of Satyajit Ray




Film Bazaar 2017
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In conversation | Jack Zhang
Founder, CEQ, Greenlight Essentials

Sudhir Mishra

Filmmaker

et fdTar guR frem 3R i arse wodieew & @830 & arata ASP doX, hod Tou TOE & TATY HINT Jol, Holl TERUB,
TARTE fihed FaRle, eRieT & arddid
Jack Zhang, Founder - CEO, Greenlight Essentials in conversation with Cameron Bailey, Artistic Director, Toronto International Film Festival in
filmmaker Sudhir Mishra conversation with Michael Werner. Film Sales Strategist.

\
A Uer qded IfERET & @Y Rreadr A% srsaroft fhedt IR # fheadR AYY HSRa

Filmmaker Nikhil Advani with Madhya Pradesh Tourism officials Filmmaker Madhur Bhandarkar at Film Bazaar

fhed a9k REPR TARNE # JHrelifaar Fare, Reeiar dedd, Ahi AT B Wi, AT UMD, $.U. J8TeT 3T Ueglg P, Siiayg
reed Ursde fo. # ardgdia
Olivia Stewart, Philippa Cambell, Marco Mueller at Film Bazaar Award Shri Farooq Khan, Hon'ble Administrator, U T of Lakshadweep in
Ceremony conversation with Prahlad Kakkar, Genesis Film Productions Pvt Ltd
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Promotion

Organized by the National Film Development Corporation
(NFDC), Film Bazaar is a platform exclusively created to
encourage collaboration between the international and South
Asian film fraternity.

The Bazaar is focused on discovering, supporting and
showcasing South Asian content and talent, in the realm of
filmmaking, production and distribution. A converging point for
film buyers and sellers from all over the world, the Bazaar also
aims at facilitating the sales of world cinema in the South Asian
region.

First held in 2007, Film Bazaar has evolved into South Asia’s
global film market, witnessing an increased South Asian and
International participation with every edition.

Over the years, films such as Lunch Box, Margarita With A straw,
Chauthi Koot, Qissa, Ship of Theseus, Titli, Court, Anhe Ghode
Da Daan, Miss Lovely, Dum Lagake Haisha, Lair’s Dice, Thithi
etc have been through one or more programmes of the Bazaar.

In the 11th edition of Film Bazaar, a new feature was introduced
in the Producers Workshop — The 48hr VR Project, which was
done in collaboration with Institut Francais in India & Wonda VR
France. The project introduces participants to VR technology
and empowers them with tools and mentorship by artistic mentor
Arnault Labaronne to create, shoot, stitch and exhibit cinematic
VR experiences in less than 48 hrs.

The 11th edition of Film Bazaar saw an attendance of 1010
delegates from 38 countries including country delegation from
Canada and Netherlands.

The 12th edition of Film Bazaar will be held from 20-24 November,
2018 at the Goa Marriott Resort along side International Film
Festival of India.

Overseas Promotion and Markets

In terms of overseas promotion of Indian cinema and to
substantiate the mandate of exports division, NFDC undertakes
various initiatives to increase marketing of its new films, existing
catalogue and promotion of Indian films in global networks, the
department also undertakes the developmental mandate of
promoting cinemas of India and Indian filmmakers abroad.

The overseas division works towards building the presence
of Indian cinema at International Film Festivals and Markets.
With International Film Community’s ever-increasing interest in
Indian Cinema, the division primarily focuses on promoting and
showcasing Cinemas of India and Indian talent at International
Film Festivals and Markets. The division has also fostered
partnerships with private and government film institutions from
across the world.

In 2017, Ministry of Information and Broadcasting, has entrusted
the work of setting up of India Pavilion in Cannes Film Festival
to NFDC that focused on a three-pronged strategy of positioning
Indian films internationally, promoting India as a filming
destination, and enabling greater international collaborations in
the film sector.
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Training & Development

With the growing demand for skilled manpower, there is an
emerging need for trained professionals who possess the relevant
skills for jobs within each sub-sector of Media & Entertainment.

To fill these qualitative gaps that are highlighted by employers
and the industry, NFDC has been conducting various training
programmes in the field of Media & Entertainment in Chennai. We
have successfully trained approx. 11,000 persons in skills such as
Avid & FCP Digital Non-Linear editing, Audio Engineering, Digital
Cinematography, Multimedia and Still Photography on behalf of
the Tamil Nadu Skill Development Corporation. In addition to this,
NFDC also ensured placement of more than 70% of the trained
& certified candidates.

Taking the Skill Mission forward, NFDC is now looking to scale
up its activities and expand in the field of vocational courses for
the Media and Entertainment sector and is planning to set up
state of art training Institutes in collaboration with various State
Government across India to roll out a pan-India model.

NFDC has recently proposed a robust model for training &
certification in various cities of Andhra Pradesh in association
with the Andhra Pradesh State Skill Development Corporation
(APSSDC) with adherence & alignment to the National Skill
Qualification Framework (NSQF).

Skill training is also provided to SC/STs and socially backward
classes, inclusion of women, minorities, and differently abled
persons by creating adequate employment opportunities in
the Media and Entertainment industry. Students in state higher
educational institutions are provided the vocational training in
media through Rashtriya Uchchatar Shiksha Abhiyan (RUSA), a
Centrally Sponsored Scheme.
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Notice

Notice is hereby given that the 43rd Annual General Meeting of
National Film Development Corporation Limited will be held on
Monday, 31st December, 2018 at 12.00 noon in the Board Room
of NFDC at 7th Floor, Discovery of India Building, Nehru Centre,
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400018, to transact the
business mentioned herein below —

Ordinary Business

1. To read, consider and adopt the Director’s Report, Audited
Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the
year ended 31st March, 2018, Balance Sheet as on 31st
March, 2018 and Auditors’ Report and the comments of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon and to
pass with or without modification the following Resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED that the Audited Balance Sheet as on 31st
March, 2018, Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow
Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018 together
with the Director’s Report and the Auditors’ Report and the
comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
are hereby read, considered and adopted.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For National Film Development Corporation Limited

(E.J. Paul)
Company Secretary

Date — 06 December 2018
Place — Mumbai

Note

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled
to appoint a Proxy to attendand vote instead of himself and the
Proxy need not be a member.

TE e fawma ora ffees
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National Film Development Corporation Limited

Managing Director’s Letter to
Shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the National Film
Development Corporation Ltd., (NFDC), | am happy to present a
report on NFDC for the year 2017-18.

| have great pleasure in informing that, after years of losses and
posting a marginal profit in the previous year, the Company has
posted a record-breaking profit after tax of ¥ 14.54 crores. This is
the highest ever profit made by the Company till date, due to which
a significant portion of its accumulated losses were recouped.
This has been possible due to commissioned production,
especially of event management activities, undertaken by the
Company during the year.

NFDC produces feature films, which reflect the Cinemas of India
to support and drive NFDC’s mission to create artistic movies
with a view to fostering excellence in cinema and promoting
Indian Culture through the Cinemas of India. In keeping with this
directive, NFDC is continuously seeking to create an environment
conducive to the making of cinema that reflects India’s most
imaginative, diverse and vibrant film culture.

NFDC has gained expertise in providing end-to-end solutions,
event management, content creation and social media
dissemination to the various client Ministries. NFDC now plans
to diversify its bouquet of services and extensively venture
into unconventional formats of advertising like creation of web
content, audios and videos, social media marketing, mobilization
drives, etc. A few of the successful events organized by the
Company during the year were the Outreach Programme,
International Film Festival of India 2017 and the 1st Khelo India
School Games.

On behalf of the Board of Directors and all officials of the
Company, | would like to convey my sincere gratitude to the
Hon’ble Union Minister of State for Information & Broadcasting
(Independent Charge), Col. Rajyavardhan Singh Rathore
(Retd.), AVSM, for the immense support and guidance received
from him. | am also deeply grateful to Shri Amit Khare, Secretary,
Ministry of Information & Broadcasting, for his support and trust
in the functioning of the Company.

| would also like to express my thanks and appreciation to my
esteemed colleagues on the Board and to all employees of
NFDC, as also to other stakeholders of the Company for their
valuable support and co-operation to the Company.

Manoj Kumar Pingua
Managing Director

43rd Annual Report 2017-18
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Directors’ Report

To,
The Shareholders

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Forty Third Annual
Report together with Audited accounts of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2018.

1. Performance Highlights

a. The highlights of performance of the company for the

201617$Wﬁmww201718$mm#mﬁ

Financial Year 2017-18 as against the performance in FY

fArourea RAREAT 50 UaR & - 2016-17, FY 2015-16 and FY 2014-15 are as under —
T @ H
T in Lakhs
Parameters 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15
Hbol JoTEd Gross Revenues 42742 16815 11666 3463
Hohel 3TARD TR M3 du) | Gross Margin (EBIDTA) 2286 203 (303) (603)
Gy c{j ST Profit before Tax 2128 7 (518) (856)
el Gar el Net Worth 3606 2152 2343 1033

g, auf g& =T 33 3R AT AT FAS b
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a remarkable turn around and made a record-breaking profit
after tax of ¥ 14.54 Crores. This is the highest ever profit
made by the Company till date. This has been possible due
to the entry of the Company into Event management vertical
and the support of Ministry of Information and Broadcasting.
The Ministry of Information and Broadcasting vide letter
No.1/9/2009-MUC dated 30th April 2015 had included NFDC
as an agency to release advertisements on behalf of the
Central Government, enabling NFDC to function as per the
business model envisaged in the Revival plan approved in
2010.

. Dividend

Due to accumulated and carried forward losses of ¥ 9.36
Crores as on March 31, 2018, payment of dividend is not
recommended for the year ended March 31, 2018.

2. Financial Review

a. Summary of Financial Results

The summary of financial results of the company for the year
ended March 31, 2018 is given below —

Y arE H

T in Lakhs

_Qavor Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Hbol 3T Gross Income 42742.02 16814.72
s3I HAT EBIDTA 2286.03 203.28
T @ Financial Expenses 15.97 56.06
Hedard Depreciation 142.14 140.45
Gors tEfr e/ (1) Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 2127.92 6.77
H & o graara Provision for Tax, etc. 673.55 197.77
U & I TH/ (F1) Profit/(Loss) After Tax 1454.37 (191)
ey — ol /&l 39 oI IR Less — Profit/(loss) Brought forward (2390.24) (2199.23)
Jerd T W AV STAT ITAT Balance Carried to Balance Sheet (935.87) (2390.24)

434} a1ffes RA1E 2017-18
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National Film Development Corporation Limited

b. Growth

During the financial year 2017-18, the Company was able
to achieve the highest ever turnover and profit, mainly
on account of execution of events and production of
advertisements for various Government clients.

c. Net Worth

The net worth of the company stands at % 3606 Lakhs as on
March 31, 2018 (Previous year ¥ 2152 Lakhs).

d. Particulars regarding conservation of Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo

Earnings in foreign exchange are ¥ 142.71 Lakhs against
52.50 Lakhs in the previous year and expenditure in foreign
currency is ¥ 297.08 Lakhs (previous year % 69.16 Lakhs).

3. Annual Return

As required under the provisions of the Section 92(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return of the Company is
displayed on the website www.nfdcindia.com/About NFDC/
corporate performance/annual return.

4. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is
hereby confirmed that —

i. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the period
ended March 31, 2018, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed, along with proper explanation relating
to material departures.

ii. Such accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently, and judgments and estimates made that are
reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial
year, and of the profit or loss of the company for that period.

iii. Proper and sufficient care is taken for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding
the assets of the company, and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities.

iv. The annual accounts have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

v. Proper systems has been devised to ensure compliance with
the provision of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

5. Activities of The Company

Film Production

The Company executes the 12th Five Year Plan Scheme of
the Ministry of Information and Broadcasting titled “Production
of films in various Indian languages”, as per which films are
produced/co-produced by NFDC as per its extant bye-laws for
film production.

Under the 12th Five Year Plan Scheme of the Ministry of
Information & Broadcasting, NFDC has signed addendum cum
amendment agreement to the Inter Party agreement with New
Zealand Film Corporation and Jungle Book Entertainment Pvt.

43rd Annual Report 2017-18
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Ltd for the film “Beyond the Known World” directed by Mr. Pan
Nalin. At present the film is in post-production stage.

Apart from producing and co-producing feature films through
execution of the Ministry’s Plan Scheme for production of films,
NFDC also produces advertisements, documentaries, short film,
TV series, web advertisement, radio series and thematic musical
anthems and executes events as a commercial activity for clients
across the Government of India and various state Governments.

Skill Development in Media & Entertainment Sector

NFDC Chennai Regional Office has imparted skill development
training and short-term vocational courses to 1417 youth in the
spheres of Editing, Multimedia, Animation, Audio Engineering,
Digital Still Photography and courses for Camera Assistants.

The Government of Tamil Nadu is supporting the vocational
training programme. During the Financial Year 2017-18, NFDC
has provided skill training to 3689 unemployed youth in Tamil
Nadu. Around 70% of the youth who underwent the training
programmes have since found employment.

Skill training was provided through TNSDC, Rastriya Uchathar
Sikshiya Abhiyan (RUSA) and Integrated Child Development
Scheme (ICDS) for the students of 13 colleges and for adolescent
Girls in 43 blocks in nine districts of Tamil Nadu.

NFDC is also in the process of becoming a training partner with
State Skill Development Agencies to conduct the vocational
training activity in media and entertainment sector across the
country.

On similar lines NFDC has recently signed an MOU with Andhra
Pradesh State Skill Development Corporation (APSSDC) for
setting up institutes for training & certification programmes in
Vijaywada, Vishkhapatnam & Tirupati for various Qualification
Packs (QP’s) in the Media & Entertainment sector in alignment
to the National Skills Qualification Framework (NSQF) in
adherence to the Common Norms issued by the Ministry of
Skill Development & Entrepreneurship. NFDC plans to recruit
best trainers from the industry for quality training leading to
placements/self-employment.

NFDC Labs has been established by NFDC to provide a
framework of professional development for Indian filmmakers
already established in the work-field or at the beginning of their
careers. The initiative seeks to deepen and enhance the working
practice of talented writers, directors, editors and producers,
through project based workshops, labs and master-classes. The
development initiatives make extensive use of opportunities to
collaborate with Indian and international film professionals in
attendance at Film Bazaar.

Film Facilitation Office (FFO)

Set up in the year 2015, with a view to promote the Ministry
of 1&Bs ‘Film in India’ initiative and facilitate film shootings by
foreign filmmakers in India, the Film Facilitation Office (FFO)
acts as a single-window facilitation and clearance mechanism
for filming of Feature Films, TV and Web Shows/Series in India
by international filmmakers. The services rendered by FFO have
now been extended to Indian filmmakers as well.

Besides endeavouring to create a film friendly environment, the
FFO has proactively attempted to create linkages between the
Industry and the various Nodal Officers appointed by Central and
State Governments, so that the economy gains direct benefits
such as revenue generation and job creation and induced
benefits like film tourism and development of allied downstream
industries (Cameras, Lights/Equipment, Hotels/Restaurant/

e fhed g erer fofdes
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Catering, Transport, Airlines, Marketing, VFX etc.) through
increased filming/shootings.

Initiatives Undertaken by FFO in FY 2017-18
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1.

Facilitating Film/TV Permissions including applications for
Co-Productions and Location scouting

31 international productions/projects, with a collective total
crew/cast strength of 266 people, from across 14 countries
namely, Australia, Bangladesh, Canada, China, Denmark,
France, Germany, Iran, Russia, South Africa, Spain, Turkey,
United Kingdom, and U.S.A, were given permission to shoot
in India during the period April 2017 to March 2018. 24 of
these were feature films and 7 were television series/shows,
which were shot across various locations across 16 States
namely, Maharashtra, West Bengal, Gujarat, Goa, Kerala,
Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh, Sikkim, Uttar Pradesh, Delhi,
Jammu & Kashmir, Rajasthan, Punjab, Haryana, Jharkhand
and Karnataka.

Additionally, FFO facilitated the granting of Co-production
status to three of these productions, namely, Union Leader
(Indo-Canadian), Extraordinary Journey of a Fakir and Sir
(Indo-French). Sir has also been selected for competition at
the Critics’ Week sidebar of the 71st Cannes Film Festival.
Furthermore, FFO has been engaging with prominent
international studios namely, Paramount Pictures and
Pinewood Studios Group (UK) for Location scouting services.

FFO’s Engagement with Hollywood

Subsequent to becoming a member of the Association of
Film Commissioners’ International (AFCI), FFO participated
in the AFCI’s annual industry educational event called
Cineposium in Los Angeles from 20th to 22nd October 2017.
The symposium gave FFO an insight into the planning of a
successful Familiarization (FAM) tour for Location Managers
and/or Producers/Directors, the creative process and its
impact on the final decision regarding selection of a location,

gHTg qUr e Fﬂfﬁ‘\’ R fET N & nfde gema and the importance of data collection in view of the economic
Y 37T STAT aﬂ'?l S 3 HHEAT B STelel T Hiepr e impact of filming in a location, among other issues that faced
gl Pol [Hell Y Film Commissions. The overall experience and knowledge
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acquisition will be integrated into the operations of FFO,
especially with regard to the engagements with State Nodal
Officers.

Participation at Marche Du Film, Cannes Film Market, May
17 - 28, 2017

FFO was present at the India Pavilion at Marche Du Film,
Cannes Film Market 2017 wherein it launched its Brochure,
with a view to promote the ‘Film in India’ initiative of the
Government. In addition, FFO undertook marketing of
its services and India’s locations through branding and
advertisements at prominent spaces at Marche Du Film and
throughout the pavilion. FFO also conducted a session on

Tl g & Flaumw feerer & gaar R qer a1 Tefesa ‘Shooting in India’, to showcase its endeavours to create
SENARAST & W U A & T Thum3 & fe a single-window facilitation and clearance mechanism and
3 gf2ar o1 Qv ot mfad foma. promote the country as a filming destination.
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FFO is in the process of setting up its web portal through
National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated (NICSI).
M/s Silver Touch Technologies has been appointed as the
Implementing Agency (IA) for establishing the dedicated
web portal that will disseminate information on filming
locations and the facilities available in India for production/
post production. Accordingly, the web portal will help
potential production companies looking to shoot in India to
obtain permissions, explore potential benefits (tangible and
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non-tangible) and obtain an overview of various locations
in India that could benefit the storyline of the film under
consideration.

In this regard the FFO has reached out to all State
Governments, the Archaeological Survey of India, the
Ministry of Railways etc. and Industry Bodies/Guilds so as
to create a database of locations and filmic resources (crew,
talent, facilities, stages, equipment, support services etc.)
available across the country.

. Facilitation of the appointment of Nodal Officers across 29

Circles of the Archaeological Survey of India

Post several follow ups and one-on-one meetings with
ASI, FFO successfully facilitated the appointment of 29
Nodal officers across all ASI circles, so as to ease the
permission process at various ASI sites across the country.
The recommendation was a result of a series of interactive
sessions held between ASI and film Industry delegates from
India and abroad. In addition, ASI also incorporated certain
clarifications in their filming guidelines, as recommended by
FFO, to make filming easier in an endeavour to encourage
filmmakers to come and shoot at ASl sites, thereby promoting
them globally.

. Facilitation of ease of issuance of Film Visas through

coordination with the Ministry of External Affairs (MEA)

Subsequent to the easing of issuance of visa, courtesy the
Ministry of 1&B’s efforts at establishing a Film Visa, the FFO
approached the MEA to hasten the process at the level of
the Indian Mission. It was felt that international filmmakers
should have ease of filming in India from their very first
engagement with Indian officials, which was at the level of
the local Indian Mission, since this was a perfect place to
demonstrate the country’s commitment to ease of doing
business. In view of this, several brainstorming meetings
were held with the Nodal Officer appointed by the MEA,
and it was proposed that MEA could consider appointing
a designated staff member as a Nodal Officer, in select
Indian Missions across the world. The Nodal Officer would
work towards the ease of issuance of Visas for international
filmmakers, cast and crew coming to film in India.

. Facilitation of ease of filming across Railways

Over various meetings with the Nodal officer of Ministry
of Railways, it was felt that a workshop for 17 Zonal Chief
Public Relation Officers (CPROs) along with line producers
and senior filmmakers, needs to be organised, so as to bring
to light the issues and challenges faced during filming in
various railway stations/premises including the inclusion of
rolling stock in the shooting. The FFO is planning to execute
this workshop in the forthcoming Financial Year.

. FFO at IFFI and Film Bazaar 2017

During IFFI 2017, FFO met with several stakeholders from
the industry and apprised them of its role and functioning with
regards to facilitating permissions, disseminating information
through a single point, location scouting, troubleshooting
while filming and international outreach. The FFO compiled
and shared a comprehensive list of incentives currently
available for filmmakers from across 14 States. A session
on ‘Ease of Filming’ was conducted at the Knowledge
Series by FFO, wherein it highlighted the various initiatives
taken to ease filming across Central and State Government
jurisdictions in the country. FFO mobilised the participation
of 10 State Governments namely, Delhi, Gujarat, Jharkhand,
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Karnataka, Lakshadweep, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra,
Rajasthan, Telangana and Uttar Pradesh, with their
respective Film Offices at the Film Bazaar.

9. Most Film Friendly State Award 2017

16 States participated in the Most Film Friendly State Award
2017, which was given under the aegis of the 65th National
Film Awards. Chaired by acclaimed filmmaker Ramesh
Sippy, the Jury consisted of renowned filmmakers, Nagraj
Manijule, Raja Krishna Menon, Vivek Agnihotri, and Uday
Singh, MD, Motion Picture Distributors Association.

Subsequent to the detailed analysis and discussions, the Jury
unanimously conferred the award for the Most Film Friendly
State to Madhya Pradesh and also decided to recognize the
efforts made by the State of Uttarakhand towards creating
a film friendly environment and hence, conferred it with a
Special Mention Certificate.

10. FFO Film on the Multiplier Effect of Filming in India

The FFO has created an A/V addressed to the Nodal Officers
spread across 29 States and 7 Union Territories, highlighting
the economic benefits of filming, which is a direct outcome of
simplifying filming & related permissions at the ground level.
The film also lays emphasis on the critical role of the Nodal
Officer in executing the parameters of the Most Film Friendly
State Award.

Distribution

It is the constant endeavour of the Distribution set up at NFDC
to break into new age digital and non-digital traditional markets
across the world by leveraging NFDC content on Video on
demand platforms along with participating in film festivals and
film markets, that are critical and central component of the global
distribution network for NFDC films.

With seven prominent verticals, NFDC has been successful in
taking their cinema to its audience. Apart from generating head
turning revenues for its theme based niche cinema, NFDC
continues to win hearts of cinema connoisseurs the world over.

Given NFDC’s mandate to promote good cinema, the Corporation
launched the brand Cinemas of India (VOD platform) to develop
a sustainable mechanism for distribution of films in India, for
both NFDC’s productions and fiims from other independent
filmmakers who may have limited access to domestic markets.

Cinemas of India facilitates distribution of films across existing
and emerging media platforms such as In-theatres, Home Video,
on Video-on-Demand (VOD) www.cinemasofindia.com, DTH
(Direct to home), In-flight other Over-The-Top (OTT) Platforms
Entertainment amongst others.

Theatrical

NFDC’s premium titles are screened all year round as theatrical

shows, as part of its strategic partnership with Vkaao (PVR). In
2017-18 Gandhi and Jaane Bhi Do Yaaro were screened.

Syndication
Television

1. The department continued its strategic collaboration with
Zee Networks for airing NFDC films on Zee classic channel.
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2. Continued strategic collaboration with Star India for
syndication of Island City on Star Network Channels.

3. Continued strategic partnership with Epic Channel for 22
Award Winning NFDC titles.

4. NFDC has an arrangement with the Lok Sabha TV to supply
acclaimed award winning films for their weekly feature film
slot. National Award winning regional films were acquired
and screened in Lok Sabha TV with English subtitles.

5. NFDC has signed an MOU with Victers Channel for supply of
100 NFDC classic films.

Digital

1. Renewed strategic collaboration with Tata Sky for NFDC
titles.

2. Continued digital collaboration with Reliance Jio on NFDC’s
ongoing titles.

In-Flight

1. NFDC titles of Arunoday, Shesher Kobita, As the River
Flows were exploited/syndicated as part of the strategic
collaboration with one of India’'s strongest content
consolidator for In-Filght Entertainment Company Contentino
Media LLP for showcasing NFDC films on Airlines globally.

Home Video

1. Continued Strategic collaboration with  Shemaroo
Entertainment, one of India’s leading companies specializing
in Home Video Entertainment. We have a library of around
98 titles released in collaboration with them.

2. New DVD titles of Island City and Sanskar were released.

Video on Demand — www.cinemasofindia.com

1. 19 Award winning Short Films from the Swachh Bharat Short
Film Festival 2016 were added as new content on the VOD
platform and have received overwhelming response.

2. A total of 130+ films are available for streaming for global
audiences.

3. NFDC has continued its association with Prozeta, an
international OTT vendor and PayU, payment gateway
partner, to create a seamless user experience for the VOD
platform.

4. Keeping in mind the growing competition in the digital content
streaming space, a timely decision to drop subscription prices
resulted in sharp increase in the number of subscribers on
the VOD platform in 2017.

International Sales

Our existing alliance with Criterion [North America] Harbottre-
Lewis LLP [London] comprises our remarkable international
sales for this financial year.

International Film Markets

1. Representation at AFM — The 38th edition of the American
Film Market was held from 1-8 November 2017 in Santa

e fhed g erer fofdes
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Monica, Los Angeles [USA]. The agenda was to present
the NFDC film catalogue and scout new partnerships to
syndicate NFDC titles internationally.

Commissioned Production

NFDC has been inspiring trust from client ministries for end-to-
end solutions, event management, content creation and social
media dissemination. The Corporation has also devised a
special strategy for collaborating with State governments. NFDC
has successfully bagged AV content development projects from
Bihar, Rajasthan, Karnataka and Himachal Pradesh. While
doing so, NFDC established itself as a reliable integrated media
services provider for the creation and dissemination of advertising
communication across platforms.

Along with this, NFDC plans to diversify its bouquet of services
and extensively venture into unconventional formats of advertising
including but not limited to creation of web content, audios and
videos, social media marketing, public relations, nukkad natak
and mobilization drives among others. NFDC’s primary aim
is to acquire the business of strategizing and executing the
Government’s premium flagship programmes to ensure synergy
in advertising, thus leading to better reach with population.

During the year, a total of 46 new clients were added to our pool
of existing clients. In addition to this, 10 private clients were also
handled. NFDC produced approximately 650 audio and video
films for various clients and also rolled out 311 media campaigns.

Preview Theatre

The Preview Theatres at Mumbai and Chennai have kept their
commitments to provide improved services to CBFC and private
parties in order to increase monthly screenings.

Cine Artistes Welfare Fund of India

A Trust was formed in the year 1991 by late Lord Richard
Attenborough named as Cine Artistes Welfare Fund of India, out
of a portion of profit earned from the film GANDHI. The main
objective of the Trust is to give financial assistance to old cine
artistes above 50 years who have fallen on bad days and need
financial support.

During the year 2017-18 a total of 255 pensioners were provided
financial assistance from the Fund.

Outreach

The Outreach Department has helped facilitate the following
activities during the year —

+ Facilitation of Screenings of NFDC titles at multiple events
throughout the year, including, BFI London Film Festival,
Copenhagen - Denmark, Indian Habitat Centre, Multiple
venues in Bihar for Gandhi Panorama, IFFK, Bikaner House,
collaborations with 1018mb.com

+ NFDC- Big FM Radio Outreach — Preparation and Recording
for a session with Speakers Milan Lutharia and Muzaffar Al

+ NFDC - Big FM radio Outreach Programme — On-ground
coordination and Recording for 12 Sessions which included
speakers, Sudhir Mishra, Mira Nair, Saurabh Shukla, Alyque
Padamsee, Kamal Hasan, Rajat Kapoor, Subhash Kapoor,
Madhur Bhandarkar, Rohini Hattangandi, Sanjay Suri,
Shyam Benegal, Saeed Akhtar Mirza, Ketan Mehta, Nagesh
Kukunoor, MS Sathyu, Shama Zaidi, Kundan Shah, Satish
Shah, Satish Kaushik, Vijaya Mehta, Homi Adajania, Pavan
Malhotra, Dibakar Banerjee, etc.
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» Film Aaj Kal — Screenings and Conversation — On-ground
execution of 12 Screening of NFDC films - as part of Radio
Outreach Program at Harkat Studios & G5A Foundation
for Contemporary Culture, including Screening, Guest
Coordination and Recording of Conversations after
Screenings. Speakers included Kamal Swaroop, Sudhir
Mishra, Ketan Mehta, Rajat Kapoor, Satish Kaushik, Saurabh
Shukla, Sharat Katariya, Saeed Mirza, Kiran Nagarkar,
Pavan Malhotra, Ashutosh Gowariker.

+ Dharamshala International Film Festival — Liaising and
Sponsorship for Dharamshala International Film Festival
2017. Created various co-branding and Outreach
opportunities with them. Two screenings of Jaane Bhi Do
Yaaron were conducted as part of a tribute to Kundan Shah
(including a special screening for inmates of the state prison,
Dharamshala) and as Outreach for the festival.

Film Bazaar

Organized by the National Film Development Corporation
(NFDC), Film Bazaar is a platform exclusively created to
encourage collaboration between the international and South
Asian film fraternity.

The Bazaar is focused on discovering, supporting and
showcasing South Asian content and talent, in the realm of
filmmaking, production and distribution. A converging point for
film buyers and sellers from all over the world, the Bazaar also
aims at facilitating the sales of world cinema in the South Asian
region.

First held in 2007, Film Bazaar has evolved into South Asia’s
global film market, witnessing an increased South Asian and
International participation with every edition. The 2017 market
saw an attendance of 1010 delegates from 38 countries including
country delegation from Canada and Netherlands.

In the 11th edition of Film Bazaar, a new feature was introduced
in the Producers Workshop — The 48hr VR Project, which was
done in collaboration with Institut Francais in India & Wonda VR
France. The project introduces participants to VR technology
and empowers them with tools and mentorship by artistic mentor
Arnault Labaronne to create, shoot, stitch and exhibit cinematic
VR experiences in less than 48 hrs.

Overseas Promotion and Markets

In terms of overseas promotion of Indian cinema and to
substantiate the mandate of exports division, NFDC undertakes
various initiatives to increase marketing of its new films, existing
catalogue and promotion of Indian films in global networks,
the department also undertakes the developmental mandate
of promoting cinemas of India and Indian filmmakers abroad.
The overseas division works towards building the presence
of Indian cinema at International Film Festivals and Markets.
With International Film Community’s ever-increasing interest in
Indian Cinema, the division primarily focuses on promoting and
showcasing Cinemas of India and Indian talent at International
Film Festivals and Markets. The division has also fostered
partnerships with private and government film institutions from
across the world.

In 2017, Ministry of Information and Broadcasting, has entrusted
the work of setting up of India Pavilion in Cannes Film Festival
to NFDC that focused on a three-pronged strategy of positioning
Indian films internationally, promoting India as a filming
destination, and enabling greater international collaborations in
the film sector.
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6. Human Resource Development
a. Schedule Caste/Schedule Tribe Reservation

The directives issued by the Government of India regarding
reservation for SC/ST in appointment and promotions to
various posts were complied with.

b. Training & Human Resource Development

Considering the developmental needs of the employees,
with a view to enhance their knowledge and skills in different
functional areas, employees were nominated for attending
training on RTIl, GST, Financial Management, Internal
Financial Controls, Ind-AS, etc., during the year 2017-18 and
also imparted in house training to the employees in technical
areas on regular basis.

c. Industrial Relations

Industrial relations continued to be healthy, cordial and
harmonious.

7. Mou With Ministry of Information And
Broadcasting

The performance of NFDC in terms of Memorandum of
Understanding signed with the Ministry of Information and
Broadcasting (the administrative Ministry) Government of India,
for the FY 2016-17 has been rated as “Poor”.

8. Official Language Implementation

The Official Language Act, along with the Rules thereof and
orders issued from time to time by the Department of Official
Language, Ministry of Information and Broadcasting, and the
Department of Public Enterprises regarding progressive use
of Hindi, were implemented in the Company during the year.
Meetings of the Official Language Implementation Committee
were held regularly to review the use of Hindi in the Company
and steps taken to implement the Annual program for the year
2017-2018 issued by the Department of Official Language,
Ministry of Home Affairs, Government of India.

9. Report On Conservation Of Energy,
Technology Absorption, Etc.

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 134
(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding Conservation of Energy,
Technology Absorption is not applicable to the Company.

10. Vigilance Matters

An officer in the rank of General Manager has been nominated to
oversee the vigilance matters. No vigilance compliant has been
received during the year 2017-18.

11. Board Of Directors And Board Meetings

The Company’s Directors are appointed and their remuneration
fixed by the Government of India. Hence the Company has
no policy on appointment of Directors and their remuneration
including criteria for determining qualification, positive attitudes,
independence of a director and other matters provided under
sub-section (3) of Section 178.
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As on date, NFDC has two Functional Directors i.e., Shri Manoj
Kumar Pingua, Managing Director, and Ms. Nazhat J. Shaikh,
Director (Finance), two ex-officio part-time Government Directors,
namely Shri Ashokkumar R. Parmar, Joint Secretary (Films),
Ministry of | & B, and Mr. Ali Raza Rizvi, Additional Secretary &
Financial Adviser, Ministry of I1&B, and one part time non-official
Director, Ms. Anupama Chopra.

Currently the posts of ten (10) Directors are lying vacant. The
Company has no role in the appointment of its Directors since
they are appointed by the Government of India.

During the Financial Year 2017-18, four Board Meetings were
held on 05/06/2017, 14/09/2017, 29/12/2017 and 28/03/2018.

12. Auditors

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India appointed M/s.
Tasky Associates, Chartered Accountants, KINARA C.H.S. Plot
No.1/10 AR, Bandra (West) Reclamation, Mumbai 400050 as
Auditors of the Company for the FY 2017-18 under Section 139
of the Companies Act, 2013.

The auditors have audited the Accounts of the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2018. The audited accounts with required
annexure and reports are annexed to this report.

13. Right To Information Act, 2005

Necessary action has been taken by the Company towards
implementation of Right to Information (RTI) Act 2005 in NFDC.
RTI Machinery is in place to attend to RTI applications and
follow-ups.

1. Chief Public Information Officer
P.P. Math, Manager (Film Production)

2. Appellate Authority
E.J. Paul, Company Secretary

14. Vigil Mechanism

In order to practice better Corporate Governance, NFDC has
adopted a Policy for Prevention of Fraud. The objective of the
policy is to provide a system for detection and prevention of
fraud, reporting of any fraud that is detected or suspected and for

T RUIE AT AT Tl Due ¥ WA A Hr iaiﬂ TE S fair dealing of matters pertaining to fraud.
HeE ¥ W add § fAUERT & &

. The Heads of Departments, General Managers, and Regional
famamt & srewe, AemdYS qAT AT gAUR! A AT & Managers are designated as the Nodal officers for this Fraud
3add Arsa fHN fgd frar mar ¥ R d 58 AT F policy and will co-ordinate all activities as per the Policy.
3eJpe AT Gire)

N 15. Audit Committee
15. 3ifse wfAST
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Director Finance, Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors are
standing invitees in the Audit Committee meetings. Senior
functional executives are also invited as and when required to
provide inputs to the Committee.
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16. Comments on The Auditors Report
Basis for Qualified Opinion —

PARA (a)

The Company has sent letters seeking confirmation of balances
in respect of Sundry Debtors, Loans and Advances, as well as
Deposits outstanding in the Books of Accounts as on 31st March
2018. Responses have been received from some of the parties.
Adequate provisions have been made in the Books of Accounts
for Sundry Debtors, Loans and Advances that are outstanding
for more than three years and have been duly carried forward
from previous years. Further, legal cases have been filed for
recovery in respect of TV Marketing Debtors and other cases of
outstanding dues wherever required.

The Current Liabilities are mainly on account of Media Business.
Most of the dues have been cleared subsequently.

PARA (b)
Noted.

PARA (c)

NFDC executes the Ministry’s Plan Scheme of “Production of
films in various Indian languages”. The Company had received
the Fund for Film “Yashodhara Ek kavya” under 12th Five
Year Plan from Ministry. The accounting policy followed by the
Company with respect to funds received from the Ministry for
production of films is stated at B.7 of Significant Accounting
Policy given at point no. 2 of Notes to Accounts.

As per sanction order dated 16.11.2012 received from Ministry
of Information & Broadcasting, there is no specific provision
for seeking prior approval for shelving of the project. However,
the Corporation has informed the Ministry regarding shelving of
the film and also sought approval for the same against which
response is still awaited.

Since the film was not completed, NFDC has not accounted for
the production fee of 10%. Hence, there is no over statement of
profit.

PARA (d)
No comments.

PARA (e)

Of the total Government dues of ¥ 1048.77 lakhs outstanding
for more than 5 years, ¥ 706.61 lakhs is due from Ministry
of Information & Broadcasting & Media units of Ministry of
Information & Broadcasting, which is NFDC’s administrative
Ministry. As per the Significant Accounting policy of NFDC,
provision towards Government dues are made to the extent
considered not recoverable in the opinion of the Management. In
the opinion of the Management, the dues from the Government
are expected to be recovered & hence provision is not considered
necessary.

PARA (f)

As per Section 142(3) The Central Goods and Services Tax Act,
2017, “the claims made for refund of any amount of CENVAT
credit, duty, tax or interest paid and pending as well as claims
made after GST introduction date but pertaining to a period prior
would be under the earlier law required to be disposed of as per
the earlier law and any amount eventually accruing to him shall
be paid in cash”.

Accordingly, letter has been sent to Service Tax Department for
refund of the CENVAT Input of the said amount and the Company
is hopeful of getting the refund.

Emphasis Matters
NIL
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Annexure — B to the Auditors Report

PARA 1

For the Financial Year 2018-19, new Internal Auditors have been
appointed for Delhi Office with additional scope of work.

PARA 2

Tendering procedure is followed for procurement of services &
SOPs duly approved by the Board are followed for production
of audio-visual content/advertisement for various client Ministries
due to the highly creative nature of the services. Identifying and
selection of creative talent, which is an intangible and highly
subjective resource, cannot be subject to routine tendering
processes. Creative talent and costs thereof will vary depending
upon various factors and specific requirements of services
required.

The production of advertisement is of two types, at DAVP rates
& Non-DAVP rates. In case of DAVP rate projects, the prices
are fixed and therefore tendering for competitive pricing is
not applicable. However, SOPs are followed for selection of
agencies to execute the project, whether at DAVP or non-DAVP
rates. In case of non-DAVP production works, all the selected
empanelled agencies submit quotes in sealed envelopes before
presentation of concepts to ensure availability of competitive
prices to the client. The client Ministry and NFDC jointly select
the final agency after concept presentation meeting wherein all
the presenting agencies are assessed, marked and ranked in the
presence of external members.

Further, the duly constituted Cost Committee assesses the
reasonability of the budget submitted against the market rate and
final quotes are sent to the client Ministry.

17. Risk Management Policy

The Board of Directors review internal & external risks of the
business periodically so as to take timely corrective action. In
order to review its internal weaknesses and various external
threats periodically, reports are placed before the Board of
Directors.

18. Corporate Social Responsibility

Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable to the Company
due to accumulated losses.

19. Disclosure Under The Sexual Harrassment
of Women At Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company has a policy in this regard.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints

JAT 3967 [UeRT FFY & R g & - received and disposed of during the year 2017-18 —
gt fRprrdt fr gEar PO TG No. of complaints received Nil
Orepradl a1 [QuerRT TS EE| No. of complaints disposed of Nil
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20. Corporate Governance

The Company consistently endeavours to adopt the best
practices of Corporate Governance to ensure transparency,
integrity and accountability in its functioning. The Corporate
Governance Report highlighting these endeavors is enclosed
herewith (Annexure I).

21. Fixed Deposit

The Company has not invited deposits from Public under Section
2(31), 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013.

22. Particulars Of Employees

There were no employees in the Company falling under the
category of employees required to be reported under Section
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules (5) 2
and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

23. Acknowledgements

The Board thanks the Company’s business partners for their
support and confidence in NFDC and look forward to sustaining
and building this mutually supportive relationship in the future
as well. The Board also gratefully acknowledges the support
and guidance received from the Government of India, various
Ministries of the Government of India, particularly the Ministry
of Information and Broadcasting, in the Company’s operations.
The Directors also express their grateful appreciation to the
Department of Public Enterprises, Comptroller and Auditor
General of India, Chairman and Members of the Audit Board,
Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors, Bankers, patrons and
customers of the Company. The Board records its deep
appreciation for the enthusiastic and dedicated work of the
members of NFDC. Their outstanding team effort was invaluable
for the smooth functioning of the Company during the year under
report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Manoj Kumar Pingua N.J. Shaikh
Managing Director Director (Finance)
DIN No. 01732177 DIN No. 07348075

Place — Mumbai
Date — 26/09/2018
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Corporate Governance Report For The
Financial Year 2017-18

A Public Sector Enterprise of Government of India, NFDC
follows the extant Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued
by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Ministry of Heavy
Industries and Public Enterprises, Government of India.

A Brief report on Corporate Governance is given below —

1. Company’s Philosophy On Code Of Corporate
Governance.

NFDC is committed to good Corporate Governances supported
by appropriate transparent systems and practice to protect,
promote and safeguard the interests of all its stakeholders.

NFDC is committed to act as a competitive, client-friendly and
development-oriented organization for promotion of good cinema
in the country and abroad. It is also committed to providing client
friendly best services to all its customers in a transparent manner.

2. Board of Directors
a. Composition of Board —

The Board of Directors of NFDC comprises Seven Members,
out of which two are Functional Directors and Five are
Directors, of whom two are the nominees of the Government
of India and three are Non-official Directors. The Directors
bring to the Board a wide range of experience, knowledge
and skills.

The composition of the Board as on 31st March 2018 is as
follows —

Functional Directors

g A «rs aEn uey faees Ms. Nina Lath Gupta Managing Director
i T, o Acere () Ms. N.J. Shaikh Director (Finance)

i FE s Non Executive Directors
21 HQﬂZ}a—ng IR, WAR Shri Ashokkumar R. . .
(.08/05/2017 X) FHR GRT A e Parmar (w.e.£.08/05/2017) | @overnment Nominee Director
& 3ol T Neret Shri Ali Raza Rizvi (w.e.f. : .
(24/10/2017 ) THR gRT ATAT fAgersh 24/10/2017) Government Nominee Director
gl U GINE R 3ERE s Ms. Anupama Chopra Non-official Director
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01. 2015 & AT & IAT AT. 3TP dIc Uh TIdT [A¢Ad &Y
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14/09/2017, 29/12/2017 AT 28/03/2018. &I 8.
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The tenure of the three Independent Directors including the
Chairman came to an end on 15.01.2015, after which one
Independent Director has been appointed.

b. Other provisions as to Board and Committees

(i) Details of Board Meeting held during the Financial Year
2017-18

During the Financial year 2017-18, four Board Meetings were
held on 01/06/2017, 14/09/2017, 29/12/2017 and 28/03/2018.

The Board has complete access to all the relevant information

within the Company enabling the Board of Directors and
Committees thereof to take informed and efficient decision.
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(ii) Details of Number of Board Meetings attended by Directors,
attendance at last AGM, number of other Directorship (in
Public Limited Companies)/Committee Memberships held
by Directors during the year 2017-18 are tabled below —

31/03/2018 I 3=
31/3/2018 %t FHC HAE HT FE;

22/12/2017

g No. of other
Board Meeting : Committee
g &1 A ug No. of other  Memberships as on
Name of Director Designation Attendances Directorships 31/03/2018
at Last AGM
(heldon 5 o201g As As
Held during 0. 1eq  22/12/2017) Chairman Member
g e S . . . .
AT uay fAcers 3 & PIS TE PSS TS 3
Ms. Nina Lath Managing Director Yes Nil Nil
Gupta
m’
gm_; a I 3RS '
s s 3 o], el 3 B G 4
Ms. Anupama .- . NA Nil
Non-Official Director
Chopra
A IRMPHAR WHR gRT ATfAT y ‘ .
IR, WAR IGCRED 5 =] P TE WS AN 5
Mr.Ashokkumar Government Yes Nil Nil
R. Parmar Nominee Director
. WHR R AfAT
ST 0 A | @ | wEas |
SHarma Government NA Nil Nil
Nominee Director
g .. du | s (fae) 4 & PS T PIS TS 3
Ms. N.J. Shaikh Director (Finance) Yes Nil Nil
A ¥ Horm HTHR gRT A . .
n Sanja;ﬁ e 0 A T PEAE | @A |
MLirtH Government NA Nil Nil
y Nominee Director
AR R AfAT
A 3rel s s
7 | T e 2 1 o | @sas | wEad |
M‘r Ali Raza Rizvi Government NA Nil Nil
’ Nominee Director
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FORYT F GrEd & AsH & o o Afg [uiRa
& & A Qe AfFAr PEAd Az & gHeT uw ¥

National Film Development Corporation Limited

(ili) None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more
than 10 Committees.

(iv) Brief Profile of new Directors

Mr. Ashokkumar R. Parmar was appointed as part-time
Government Director w.e.f. 08/05/2017. He is working as Joint
Secretary (Films), Ministry of Information & Broadcasting.

Mr. Ali Raza Rizvi was appointed as part-time Government
Director w.e.f. 24/10/2017. He is working as Additional Secretary
& Financial Advisor, Ministry of Information & Broadcasting.

c. Code of Conduct

The Company has prepared a policy on Code of Conduct
for the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel
in alignment with the Company’s mission and objectives
and aims at enhancing ethical and transparent process in
managing the affairs of the Company. Further, the Company
has formulated a policy on Fraud Prevention. Both the
policies have been noted by the Board of Directors.

43rd Annual Report 2017-18

33



34

3. fAeQrs FAza 6 wiRfIar

3.1 9% gNT 91fdd AfRfaAr 8@ UHR & -
. 3iifee IfAfa

- FIfdie suafAfa

- gisfae afafa

- PlURe AR aIldca TfAfa

3.1.1. ifee gfdfa

(i) 31 AT 2017 & 3ifSe TRATT FT 6T 59 YAR AT —

3. Commitees of The Board Of Directors

3.1 The Committees constituted by the Board are as follows —
+ Audit Committee
« Personnel Sub-Committee
* Remuneration Committee

+ Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

3.1.1 Audit Committee

(i) The composition of the Audit Committee as on 31st March
2018 is as under —

. Name of the . . Position in
AdAF FT ATH uq gfafa & ~ufa Director Designation Committee
R 3RFRE Ms. Anupama Non-official
AT U A0S IGEEICH qeH 1 Chopra Director IO E
PR gRT ATiAd . o Government
A 3ol T Rerdt o e 2 | Mr. Ali Raza Rizvi Nominee Director Member

o uders @fRfd A Jowt A A (), ndRe o
wetr dur durfae omr udiets, TRh [HEfRa @ €.
3ATHhAT Usa WX FATT & 3Taedd I Yald #iad &
fod afits Faerde ufdaargieed & & gomar Sirar §.

o qderor FfAfa & dedr I § sEd i § - WeR
ERT FAAAT e 3R e Tadas [, & Tady et &

e @il §. 39 golg ¥ a9 a¥ 2017-18 & R o@r udiefor

(i) r@T TfeToT WA @7 IR 36 wHN ¥ -

(F) DA TaC T URT 177 F & T8 HGIHAT Bl HJUTelT

(@) Ut & @ Wfdd/3wdf@da  Yenfae/ Ad9arf¥es/
aifiies ey feroi @ ReplS W oar qur/3rar sehr
& L.

3.1.2. FfdAd suafATY

31 AT 2018 Pl AR AS I dIfdd 3T AT BT IS
3T UBR AT —

Director (Finance), Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors
are standing invitees in the Audit Committee meetings. Senior
functional executives are also invited as and when required to
provide inputs to the Committee.

The strength of the Audit Committee is four consisting of Govt.
Nominee Director and three Independent Directors. The posts of
two Independent Directors were vacant, due to which no Audit
Committee Meetings were held during the Financial Year 2017-
18.

(i) The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as under

(a) to comply with the requirements laid down in Section 177 of
the Companies Act

(b) to take on record and/or to review unaudited/audited
quarterly/half-yearly/annual financial statements of the
Company

3.1.2 Personnel Sub-Committee

The composition of Personnel Sub-Committee of Board of
Directors as on 31st March 2018 are as follows —

T T
1| gAl A o agEr gay fagers geey 1 | Ms. Nina Lath Gupta lé)ﬂi?g;%irng Member
2 | gA . o Aw Acas (fae) Fre =] 2 | Ms. N.J. Shaikh Director (Finance) Member
s | ST B AR | || a o B | Mo
o, (SIRIRE | Meseanafoenoted |

e 30 FATT BT FAET 30 UK § —

UaUd ¥ 3T ATYUGYF b & Ul R IFTASRMAT Pl Tgletd,
HATUTHNT DA Td HIARAT § dloed @ drel A Faed
3T A W R

%zﬁém?-zmsa?a‘kmmﬁzﬁmaﬁﬁmﬁaﬁém
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The terms of reference of the Personnel Sub Committee are as
under —

To consider the promotion of officers from Manager up to the
level of Deputy General Manager and Welfare issues and other
policy matters related to personnel.

During the year 2017-18 no Personnel Sub Committee Meetings
was held.
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3.1.3 uifde afafa
31 AT 2018 P uI#fAs AfAfT &1 15T 37 ISR AT -

3.1.3 Remuneration Committee

The composition of the Remuneration Committee as on 31st
March 2018 is as follows —

Pemmam W st ool Designaton  EoSton
1 g&ﬁ CIGIRIE) it Tay fagers Ferr=1 1 | Ms. Nina Lath Gupta I\Dﬂiilgg%ipg Member
2 | gA T, o g Acars (fas) Fr=1 2 | Ms. N.J. Shaikh Director (Finance) Member
s | AT ST, | SO AR | | |a | SR SO | M
D e Y

aisfde afAfa o1 s 38 ueR § -

o daa/dfdea 0 ga & IR @& Haer dqwm @l

aur dd gAadess & = @AFa
a3t & iR sa faaver & Aifa [uiika e

a¥ 2017-2018 & el wisfde afdfa & a1 dob T8 8.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are as
under —

To decide the annual bonus/variable pay pool and policy for its
distribution across the executives and non-unionized supervisors
within the prescribed limits.

During the year 2017-18, no Remuneration Committee Meeting
was held.

3.1.4 HOlke @ ReoieaRed g 3.1.4 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
31 AT 2018 &I Hhiuke Tera Reuifcafafad afafad &1 o The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility
H UBR AT — Committee as on 31st March 2018 is as follows —
. Name of the . . Position in
e &1 aF uc AT & =T Director Designation ST
1| g e drs Iar ugy fAcersh prce=f Ms. Nina Lath Gupta | Managing Director Member
2 | gNua o g A (fae) Peror= Ms. N.J. Shaikh Director (Finance) Member
M 3R E Ms. Anupama TR .
3| g 3rguar s e e Chopra Non-official Director | Member
a§ 2017-2018 & N7 FroRe GRe Regieafed afafg & During the year 2017-18, no Corporate Social Responsibility
P Yo A& §§ Committee was held.

foa a§ 2017-2018 & A A a6 T, gy ASAF B
% 24,92,424 A A w4, I AW, A T @ % 22,70,178
&1 aifdre yara fohar s g af 2017-2018 & fordr el
3T At B B uiRsfRe v A& fopar .

4. AR 3TH AT

a¥ T

Ms. Nina Lath Gupta, Managing Director was paid a remuneration
of ¥ 24,92,424 and Ms. N.J. Shaikh, Director (Finance) was paid
a remuneration of ¥ 22,70,178 in the F.Y. 2017-18. None of the
other Directors were paid any remuneration during the financial
year 2017-18.

4. Annual General Meeting
e aur  Fr F15 Ay waa

gAY i R I
40 & | 2014-15 forees B, 681 FHfSW, BEpadl 30w sfear fafesar, agw dex, | 30/09/2015 &t
st T . U3, geff, Fa$ - 400 018 e 11 To¥
. oS FraTed, 681 FAiford, REmad 3w sRaT R, Jew I, 27/10/2017 ]
4111201516 | o T oy s, e TS - 400 018 d 'Em“ 2.00 &
a2 & | 2016-17 | ovEeS PR, 681 Ao, BEdall 3w $far fafesy, aww e, zazwﬂzqzzog .
3. v @1 WS, geff, HIS - 400 018 M
; e e, 681 Ao, Remad 3w sRar Rfes, Jww I, 31.12.2018 .
43 dt | 2017-18 st ©. . s, geff, FI$ - 400 018 a %:aﬁu il Gl

National Film Development Corporation Limited
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Year Location

Whether any special

Date & Time .
resolution passed

Registered Office 30/09/2015

40th | 2014-15 | 6th floor, Discovery of India Building, Nehru Centre, Dr. Annie Besant 11.00 AM No
Road, Worli, Mumbai — 400 018 '
Registered Office 27/10/2017

41st | 2015-16 | 6th floor, Discovery of India Building, Nehru Centre, Dr. Annie Besant 12 noon No
Road, Worli, Mumbai — 400 018
Registered Office 90/12/2017

42nd | 2016-17 | 6th floor, Discovery of India Building, Nehru Centre, Dr. Annie Besant 12.10 PM No
Road, Worli, Mumbai — 400 018 ’
Registered Office 31/12/2018

43rd | 2017-18 | 6th floor, Discovery of India Building, Nehru Centre, Dr. Annie Besant 12.30 PM No
Road, Worli, Mumbai — 400 018 ’

5. USRI 5. Disclosures

(i) 39 OE & s N Aecagol Hig A& & A FIfdaT s
S : yAed, A yar gdaud & @y Y R @ 3R
AP HUAT & Rdl T AT YATT gsAT &I

(i) HUAT 3H a1 D g HA & o Rt o il o 3ifee
afAfd @ ffere @ Aepr & I

(iii) Hud F feT 3Mgery @ PuRe Iy R #F
! nfarer m?asq%nt'amﬂmmm%

(iv) duelt & fAgerpt & & His HaRke T 7 §.

(v) Ueer e auf & Pyl W TWAR gRT SN foRdr I feem
faget & soeud @ FdwAE FRAG gRT JATT 3rerar
qrged) T8 TS IS .

ddvag & o #ule ada w fRBudsde 30w ufeas
m@gmmﬁsnﬁéw%msﬁaﬁﬁ?ﬁm
3TaRTR .

(i) o8 @rat # e i 1 T A A S ASTH F Ao
& AL & — P AL

(i) cafhora foFear & @I qur 9 @I St AeUs FAsd wd
3T YEYa & o R T - P1g A9

(i) a¥ 2017-2018 & VDT dAT HEAET & TI, Fol
g ¥ 2.73 yfagd (Uod a¥ 5.51 gfded) @, 3R a¥
2017-2018 & O @I & ufqerd & at W 2.74 ufdea
(oo af 5.56 ufae ) &

(iv) 3R NG a3t & day # 3heR /IR 3feR
I T & S W@ -

IR AT 3magRan

i. fgers FAsd

i. aisifae afAfa

A & e G & AT TATHEERR & A A aTH
T8 /ANTIA Gl 3N TiFeTergfecd aUr A Fdarsss

& I fuiRa @t & sgge g0 faawor
P gay # NfQ AURoT F o 21.06.2011 B TH TIRHTASR
gfAfa &1 157 fomar
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(i) There are no materially significant transactions with related
parties i.e. promoters, Directors or the management
conflicting with the Company’s interest.

(i) The Company affirms that no personnel have been denied
access to the Audit Committee.

(ili) The Company has adopted suggested items to be included

in the Report on Corporate Governance.

(iv) There is no inter-se relationship between Directors of the
Company.

(v) No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the
Company by any statutory authority, on any matter related to
any guidelines issued by Government, during the last three
years.

Additional disclosures as required under the Guidelines on
Corporate Governance for CPSEs issued by Department of
Public enterprises

(i) Items of expenditure debited in books of accounts, which are
not for the purpose of business — NIL

(i) Expenses incurred which are personal in nature and incurred
for the Board of Directors and Top Management — NIL

(iii) Administrative and office expenses as a percentage of total
expenses for the year 2017-2018 is 2.73% (Previous year
5.51%) and as a percentage of financial expenses for the
year 2017-2018 is 2.74% (Previous year 5.56%)

(iv) Information on adoption/non-adoption of non-mandatory
requirements is given hereunder —

Non-mandatory Requirements
i. The Board

The Company is headed by a Managing Director. All the
Independent Directors previously on the Board of the
Company were appointed for a tenure of three years and
none of the Independent Directors having/had tenure
exceeding, in aggregate, a period of nine years.

ii. Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the directions of DPE the Board of NFDC
has constituted a Remuneration Committee on 21.06.2011
to decide the annual bonus/variable pool and policy for
its distribution across the executives and Non-Unionized
supervisors within the prescribed limits.
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ii. 37AYRA b TAPR

3T Y TG F W ARG 3farive o arweiy,

Sd U o8 Al & Ascayqor o afFafaa 4,
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vi. TEae sai3R giferd

HUA gRT NE@dl Uebed FaLl A 30 7 ¥ fSEd
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6. Uk ATIA
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National Film Development Corporation Limited

ii. Shareholders Rights

As of now there is no system of sending half yearly financial
performance including summary of the significant events in
the last six months to shareholders.

iv. Audit Qualification — Auditors report annexed.
v. Training to Board Member — It is need based.
vi. Whistle Blower Policy

“Policy for Prevention of Frauds” is being adopted by the
Company, wherein a Whistle Blower mechanism is in place
for detection, prevention and reporting of fraud. This policy
applies to any fraud or suspected fraud involving employees
as well as stakeholder, consultants, vendors, lenders,
borrowers, contractors, outside agencies doing business
with the Company, employees of such agencies, and/or any
other parties with a business relationship with the Company.

6. Means of Communication

The Company communicates with its shareholders through its
Annual Reports, General Meeting and Disclosures through
website. All important information pertaining to the Company
is also mentioned in the Annual Report for each financial year
containing inter alia Audited Accounts, Directors Report, Auditors
Report which is circulated to the members and others entitled
thereto.
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Management Analysis Report

The Company

National Film Development Corporation Limited (NFDC) is a
Public Sector Undertaking established to encourage the good
cinema movement in the country. The primary goal of the NFDC
is to plan, promote and organize an integrated and efficient
development of the Indian Film Industry in accordance with the
national economic policy laid down by the Central Government
from time to time.

Overview of the Media & Entertainment Industry

1. Significance of the M&E Sector

According to KPMG Media and Entertainment report 2018
India’s Media and Entertainment (M&E) Industry grew by
10.9 percent in FY 2018 to reach INR 1,436 billion primary
on the back of rapid penetration and growth in the digital
user base which had a significant positive impact on
demand across multiple M&E sectors such as films, digital
advertising, animation and VFX, gaming, and music. Further,
growing penetration into and strong demand from rural
and regional markets also provided support to ad revenue
generation in television and print. While print contributed to
face pressure from digital platforms, the radio segment was
affected by oversupply of inventory due to the launch of new
radio stations.

Digital access and consumption has seen a rapid growth over
the last 24 months following the rollout of 4G, aided by falling
data costs and rapid growth in smartphone penetration. As
a result, digital usage has become more democratized and
widespread. This had a significant positive impact across
multiple sectors with the direct impact being noticed in digital
advertising and mobile gaming- both of which witnessed
growth rates in excess of 30 per centin FY 2018. Additionally,
growing demand for digital content had positive impact on
films and music segments as well as animation and VFX
segments.

However, in FY 2018, the Indian M&E industry witnessed
the beginnings of a major structural shift as lines between
various players across the value chain started blurring with
Technology, Media and Telecom convergence starting to
become reality. This convergence has begun to give rise
to the media ecosystems, particularly with telecom and
technology players realizing the importance of M&E as key
driver, to engage with and monetize their consumers. While,
these changes are providing multiple opportunities to media
organizations in the short term, they also have the potential
to fundamentally change how media is created, distributed
and consumed, and, therefore, completely disrupt the
existing media value chain.

2. Outlook for the Film Industry

The Indian film industry has had a healthy performance over
the last two years, on the back of strong domestic box office
performance coupled with growing overseas contributions
particularly through entry into new markets like China. In
domestic theatricals, the increase in Average Ticket Price
(ATP) primarily resulted in box office growth with footfalls
remaining nearly constant. Movies with differentiated and
participative content continued to perform well at Bollywood
and regional box offices. Action packed franchise Hollywood
movies remained popular among Indian audiences on
the backdrop of their increased reach though English and
dubbed content. For overseas theatricals, there has been
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an increase in the number of movies releasing overseas
and particularly, the Chinese market, which has opened up
new avenues for the Indian industry. The cable and Satellite
(C&S) market remained relatively static, and even witnessed
a decline for certain regional cinema due to availability of
commercially viable alternatives for broadcasters. On the
other hand, digital rights on OTT platforms became an
important revenue stream. Aggressive content acquisition
and emphasis on content exclusively to draw more traffic by
digital players have primarily led to this growth.

The Indian film industry witnessed 10 per cent growth in
FY 2018 over the previous year to reach INR 158.9 billion.
Theatrical revenue, constituting 78 per cent of the total
film industry revenue, was the key driver, with domestic
and overseas theatricals growing by 7.3 per cent and 20.6
per cent respectively in FY 2018 over the last year. Cable
& Satellite rights value remained nearly constant while
ancillary revenues demonstrated a strong growth of 21.9
per cent driven by the digital rights of movies and in-cinema
advertising. It is also interesting to note that the dependence
on domestic box office gradually reduced from 74 per cent in
FY 2014 to 69 per cent in FY 2018.This is primarily driven by
increasing share of overseas and ancillary revenues whose
contributions have grown at the cost of domestic theatricals
and cable & satellite revenues shares

While the performance of Bollywood movies at the box office
has remained nearly constant over FY 2016 to FY 2018 the
regional film industry has been gaining prominence in recent
years with a share of 40-45 per cent (in terms of box office
revenues) in FY 2018 with Tamil, Telugu and Malayalam
being the major contributors. However, growth of exhibition
infrastructure remains sluggish and is a key limiting factor.

3. Challenges

In the age of digital disruption the means of access to films
for consumers have increased abundantly through multiple
OTT platforms. OTT Video on Demand (VoD) platforms like
Amazon Prime Video, Netflix and local players like Hotstar,
Voot, SonyLiv, ALT Balaji have become very active looking for
exclusive deals with production houses and producing own
content. There are over 40 OTT platforms in India offering
services at very competitive rates. This has increased the
risk of lower footfalls in the cinema exhibition halls.

. The film exhibition segment has several decades of disruption

through various electronic mediums including VCRs, CDs,
DVDs, MP3 and online streaming services. Cinemas have
not only survived these technologies, but prospered in all of
these eras. Emergence of online platforms has resulted in
an enhanced dialogue between exhibitors and distributors
around an exclusive theatrical release window.

Despite being fully digitized, the Indian film segment is
grappling with the menace of piracy, which has been rampant
in the market. The entire value-chain is affected under such
dynamics where the films are made available within hours of
its theatrical release. High content prices, low income level
and cheaper Internet infrastructure are the major factors
leading to content piracy.

There have been several steps taken by the Government
and different industry associations have come together to
work on the piracy menace. The Indian copyright law has
provisions for digital right management for protection of the
content on digital environment.
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4. Way Ahead

i. India is witnessing a rise in collaborations between Indian
production houses and foreign studios. International studios
are spending heavily in their effort to gain a foothold in
Bollywood and have established their domestic divisions
in collaboration with small production houses. Further, to
give impetus to co-productions and collaborations between
Indian and overseas filmmakers, the Indian Government has
entered into co-production treaties with various countries
such as China, Canada, France, Germany, Brazil, Italy, New
Zealand, UK and Bangladesh.

ii. The advent of large OTT platforms in India such as Google,
Netflix, Amazon Eros Now, Jio Cinema etc., apart from OTT
offerings of various telecom companies, has significantly
increased the demand for films rights. The sudden surge
in demand, especially the demand for exclusive rights, has
resulted in a significant increase in the value of digital rights,
which as per industry estimates have increased multi-fold
over the last two to three years. Digital revenue generated
INR 8.5 billion for the film segment in 2017 an increase of
40% over 2016.

iii. There is increasing focus on Virtual reality (VR), Augmented
Reality (AR) & Mixed Reality (MR) as technologies being
increasingly used in everyday content and communication.
Of these, VR is looked upon as the next platform for film
viewing globally. We currently consume content on three
viewing platforms- Cinema (Big screen), TV (Small screen),
web and Mobile (Mini screen). VR is going to be the 4th and
the most immersive platform. Each platform comes with its
own unique content characteristics and hence content made
for each on a differential basis.

Competitive Position of NFDC

NFDC’s competitive position in the film industry is derived from
its core competency of being a broad-based film company that
plays a key role in the development, production, distribution
and marketing of all forms of films in various Indian languages.
With this view, NFDC works closely with flmmakers across the
vast value chain of the business, from development, production
and distribution of feature films at one end of the spectrum to
production of advertisement films, corporate films, documentaries
etc., and execution of publicity campaigns on behalf of the
Government of India.

NFDC has played a major role in the film industry, produced more
than 300 domestic and international films, and has introduced
talented Directors, Writers, Cinematographers and other Artists.
Thus, as the industry grows and expands, and new challenges
and shortfalls emanate at each stage of this growth, NFDC needs
to step into those areas to supplement the efforts of the industry.

In the circumstances, there is a need for NFDC to constantly
assess the lacunae in the industry and position itself accordingly.
The vacuum in the industry changes as the industry grows — thus
25 years ago, the vacuum was in lack of technology, in imports,
in funding new talent, lack of theatres, etc. Today, the lacunae
includes insufficient attention to Research & Development,
language cinemas, lack of exhibition avenues for acclaimed
films, lack of co-ordinated promotion of Indian cinemas abroad,
absence of any global positioning of the Cinemas of India, lack of
sufficient content, post onslaught of the various digital platforms,
absence of a reliable centralized database, etc. NFDC, to fulffill
the mandate for which it has been set up, needs to step into
these areas. NFDC Labs, for example, seeks to deepen and
enhance the working practice of talented writers, directors and
producers through project based workshops and master classes.
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National Film Development Corporation Limited

The Corporation has a Distribution vertical where a film travels
through the entire gamut of activities — film festivals, India
theatrical release, syndication across Pay TV, Digital and other
ancillary platforms — DTH, Home Video, Airlines, etc. This is
done with an aim to generate a steady revenue stream through
syndication on several revenue platforms, selection of films at
premiere film festivals and markets, and screening of NFDC films
globally.

In addition to its developmental agenda, NFDC is positioned
as a 360-degree integrated media service provider to various
government and non-government clients for the creation and
dissemination of advertising communication across platforms.
With time, the ambit of creative services provided by NFDC
has widened. Considering the emerging trends in the media
and advertisement industry, the Company has ventured into
designing and execution of social and digital media campaigns
and strengthened its position in commissioning of events for
various clients.

Since most of the activities undertaken by the Company in
the domain of feature films are almost entirely developmental
in nature, they make an almost negligible contribution to the
financial performance of the Company in terms of profitability.
NFDC attempts to cross-subsidize these expenses through its
business of producing and executing publicity campaigns for the
Government of India.

Products & Services

NFDC offers the following services —

1. Film Production

The objective of the Film Production is to produce films
in various Indian languages under the sub-component
“Production of films in various Indian languages” under
the Component “Production of fiims and documentaries in
various Indian languages” of the Main Secretariat’s Xl Plan
Scheme “Development, Communication and Dissemination
of Filmic Content”.

NFDC endeavours to support and drive the Plan Scheme
through production of films by first time filmmakers and
co-production with emerging filmmakers and international
producers. During the financial year 2017-18, NFDC has
signed the co-production agreement with New Zealand
and Indian producer for the film Beyond the Known World
directed by Pan Nalin. The film is in post-production stage.

Some of the landmark films that NFDC has produced/co-
produced in the last few years include The Lunchbox, Qissa,
Manjunath, Anhey Gorhey Da Daan, Manjhi — the Mountain
Man, Arunoday, Chauranga, Chauthi Koot, amongst others.

2. Distribution

NFDC has been at the forefront to promote and develop Indian
independent cinema globally. The idea to empower Indian
Independent Cinema with all possible modes of distribution
led to the launch of the Cinemas of India Video On Demand
platform in 2012. The VoD platform offers immense value
in terms of its content to its patrons. The brand includes
release of a film across traditional platforms (Theatrical,
Home Video and Satellite) and emerging platforms (Video
on Demand, DTH and Airlines). Distribution Department runs
a year round social media and email marketing promotions
to widen the subscriber base and increase the reach of the
platform, which presently streams 130+ titles year-on-year.
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Dedicated promotion of Cinemas of India Video on Demand
platform has resulted in a 300% rise in subscriptions from
2016. As per analytics we have reported a rise in new website
visitors, new subscribers and a positive increase in terms
of returning visitors. The spike in the number of Returning
visitors is significant for a 145 films strong VoD platform.

The NFDC library catalogue is streaming on renowned
partner platforms such as Hotstar, JIO Movies, Zee
Entertainment, Amazon Prime and Netflix.

3. Training & Development

For some years now, the Training Division in the Chennai
Regional Office has been conducting various media-related
training programmes for unemployed youth in the southern states
and has imparted short-term training and vocational courses to
more than 11000 youth in the sphere of Animation, Camera,
Editing, Multimedia, Photography and Audio Engineering.

However, with the growing demand for skilled manpower,
there is a need not only for more trained professionals in the
Media & Entertainment sector, but also for the establishment of
standardized practices in various technical and support jobs. To
fill these qualitative and quantitative gaps that are highlighted
by employers and the industry, NFDC is planning a robust Pan
India Model for training & certification in various courses for the
creative industry. NFDC is currently in the process of setting up
Training Centres in Andhra Pradesh and Bhopal in association
with the Andhra Pradesh State Skill Development Corporation
(APSSDC) and the Madhya Pradesh State Skill Development &
Employment Generation Board (MPSSDEGB) with adherence
and alignment to the National Skill Qualification Framework
(NSQF).

Going forward, NFDC expects to set up such centres in different
states in association with various State Skill Development
Missions (SSDMs) to achieve the larger objective of the creating
skilled and employable manpower for the Media & Entertainment
Industry.

4. Dubbing

The Chennai Regional Office has undertaken the dubbing of 13
films of Children’s Film Society, India into 14 regional languages,
including north-eastern languages.

5. Film Bazaar

Organized by the National Film Development Corporation Limited
(NFDC), Film Bazaar (FB) is a platform exclusively created to
encourage collaboration between the international and South
Asian film fraternity. The Bazaar is focused on discovering,
supporting and showcasing South Asian content and talent, in the
realm of development, production and distribution. A converging
point for film buyers and sellers from all over the world, the
Bazaar also aims at facilitating the sales of world cinema in the
South Asian region. First held in 2007, Film Bazaar has evolved
into South Asia’s global film market, witnessing an increased
South Asian and international participation with every edition.
The 2017 market saw an attendance of 1010 delegates from 38
countries including dedicated country delegations from Canada
and The Netherlands. The 11th edition of Film Bazaar was held
from November 20-24, 2017 at the Marriott Resort, Goa, India.

In its 11th year, Film Bazaar continues to be an exciting and
inspiring place for the Independent filmmakers’ community from
India and South East Asia and those interested in the business
from across the world. With 1010 delegates from 38 countries
attending Film Bazaar in 2017, the event has come a long way
since its inception in 2007 (204 guests from 18 countries). The
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Bazaar has now become a focal point for South Asian filmmakers
to present their stories to the international & domestic film
fraternities. In addition, the event has become a must-attend in
the annual calendars of international sales agents, producers,
distributors, film festival programmers and film funds. Last
but not the least, it is also becoming an event where industry
professionals are coming to learn about the future trends in the
business and also to identify and partner with the next big film/
filmmaker.

Increasingly, established filmmakers and new talent from across
the world view Film Bazaar as a principal platform for launching
and funding Indian and South Asian films. 2017 saw a very
exciting line-up of projects being submitted for the Co-Production
Market, Screenwriters’ Lab & Studio and Work-in-Progress Lab
by filmmakers from India, Afghanistan, Nepal, Bangladesh, Sri
Lanka and Canada.

The Co-Production Market, Film Bazaar Screenwriters’ Lab &
Studio and Work-in-Progress Lab presented a total of 39 projects,
which were at various stages of development and production.
There was an increase in all the segments of the Bazaar this
year — both in film submissions and also in terms of delegate
participation.

The Producers’ Workshop is designed to help emerging
producers cultivate a sense of vision to maintain a fine balance
between the creative and financial aspects of filmmaking. The
sessions are focused on the role of a producer, the development
process of a film, raising finances, international co-productions
and alternative marketing and distribution platforms with special
sessions around emerging film technologies, the various stages
of filmmaking and its eventual distribution and exhibition.
Additionally, a very special part of the Producers’ Workshop this
year was the Film Bazaar’s collaboration with Institut Francais in
India/Wonda VR, France, on their 48h VR project. The project
introduces participants to VR technology and empowers them
with tools and mentorship by artistic coach Arnault Labaronne to
create, shoot, stitch and exhibit cinematic VR experiences in less
than 48 hrs. Given the dynamic nature of the content universe
and its interface with technology today, this integration comes as
an interesting value-add to the Producers’ Workshop.

Based on the overwhelming response received from the delegates
on the video format (introduced last year) for the Open Pitch,
called ‘Video Pitch’, the Co-Production Market kick started with
the Open Pitch on 21st November in the Knowledge Series Hall.
In addition to this, an Orientation Session was held a day prior
to the Open Pitch to familiarise the participants with the workings
of international co-productions and practices. Filmmakers were
also introduced to the Film Facilitation Office and its services with
regards to shooting in different states, sourcing permissions, and
providing information about various rebates, schemes offered by
Indian states to filmmakers. Other sessions on public funding,
social media as a tool and one-on-one pitching were held. The
idea was to provide ample support to the projects for the four
days at the market.

This year, there were 103 applications received for Co-Production
Market and 18 projects from India, Afghanistan, Bangladesh,
Canada, Nepal and Sri Lanka were selected. The projects
belonged to a wide range of genres including drama, adventure,
sci-fi, war and fantasy. The selection included two projects from
the Screenwriters’ Lab 2016.

As part of NFDC Labs’ ongoing initiative to develop original voices
and stories from India, a new initiative called the Screenwriters’
Studio was conducted, as a parallel programme to the Film
Bazaar Screenwriters’ Lab. Eight selected participants worked
with mentors in an intensive 5-month programme to explore
their stories in one-on-one as well as group sessions. Aimed
at domestic as well as international markets, the projects were
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pitched to producers and investors in a pitching session at the
Bazaar.

In 2017, many films, which were a part of the Viewing Room and
Work-in-Progress Lab at Film Bazaar’s previous editions, had
their international premiers in important film festivals around the
world. The list includes In the Shadows by Dipesh Jain, which
premiered at the Busan International Film Festival and won the
Grand Jury Prize at the 19th Jio MAMI Mumbai Film Festival,
The Bioscopewala by Deb Medhekar, which premiered at the
Tokyo International Film Festival, Juze by Miransha Naik, which
premiered at the Hong Kong International Film Festival, Village
Rockstars by Rima Das, which premiered at Toronto International
Film Festival and went to San Sebastian International Film
Festival and won three Awards, including the Golden Gateway
award at the 19th Jio MAMI Mumbai Film Festival, S. Durga by
Sanalkumar Sasidharan, which premiered at the International
Film Festival Rotterdam and was awarded the Hivos Tiger
Award at the festival, Ralang Road by Karma Takapa, which
premiered at the 52nd Karlovy Vary International Film Festival,
Kho Ki Pa Li (Up Down & Sideways) by Anushka Meenakshi &
Ishwar Srikumar, which had its World Premiere at the Yamagata
International Documentary Film Festival in Japan under the New
Asian Currents program and won two awards at the festival
including the Directors Guild of Japan Award (It was earlier titled
Nehi Mozohanu Dizo Le (Without You | Am Nothing) when it was
a part of the WIP Lab).

6. Services to Various Government Departments

While the aforementioned verticals of the company are primarily
developmental in nature, the key business area of NFDC is
that of producing and publicizing advertising communication
for the Government of India. NFDC is a 360-degree integrated
service provider for the creation, organizing and dissemination
of advertising communication across different media platforms.
Over the past years, NFDC has collaborated with various
governmental establishments/departments, etc., and has
produced and delivered various types of audiovisual and cross-
platform campaigns, as per the needs and requirements of
clients.

NFDC renders services across the following verticals —
1. Production of

Films/Video
Teasers/Graphic

« Short films/Documentaries/Corporate
Spots/TVCs/Animations/Promotional
Presentations

+ Radio Spots/Radio Jingle/Radio Anthems

+ Sponsored Radio Programs

» Posters, Coffee Table Books, Diaries & Calendars, Leaflets
& Flyers

» Print, Television and Radio Advertisements
* Merchandise
2. PR and Media Monitoring

+ Impact assessment of Image Projection Campaigns to
gauge their effectiveness, and guide future strategy.

» Managing various Press Conferences, PR release/kits and
Seminars
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National Film Development Corporation Limited

3. Media Campaigns
+ Planning Media for various Government departments

+ Release of various media plans across AIR, Private FM Radio
channels, Private Satellites TV, Digital Cinema Theatres,
Audio Announcement System, LCD/LED Panels in Public
Spaces, SMS Campaigns and Web/Internet Campaigns

4. Social Media Campaigns

+ Create and Manage content on Social Media platforms
Twitter, You Tube, Facebook and Instagram, in order to
create awareness, guide consumers/beneficiaries, and
facilitate effective implementation of Government initiatives.

+ Online Response and Conversation Management

+ Engaging Users with New Look, Updates and content

5. Event Management

» Conceptualising, organising and managing various events
ranging from Sports to Music, Awards to Competition

+ Community reachout activities like Nukkad Naatak/Street
Plays in both Urban and Rural markets.

NFDC has been entrusted with the mandate of production of high
quality content across audio-visual, print, digital and other media.
The aim is to acquire the business of strategizing and executing
the Government’s premium flagship programmes to ensure
synergy in public service advertising, thus leading to better reach
with stakeholders.

7. Preview Theatres

NFDC gives on hire its Preview Theatres at Mumbai and Chennai
for exhibition of films to various government/non-government
clients. The theatres are equipped with the latest technology to
show films in analog and digital platforms, including 3D projection
facilities.

8. Film Facilitation Office
Initiatives undertaken by FFO in FY 2017-18

1. Facilitating Film/TV Permissions including applications for
Co-Productions and Location Scouting

Thirty one international productions/projects, with a
collective total crew/cast strength of 266 people, from across
14 countries namely, Australia, Bangladesh, Canada, China,
Denmark, France, Germany, Iran, Russia, South Africa,
Spain, Turkey, United Kingdom and U.S.A, were given
permission to shoot in India during the period April 2017 to
31st March 2018. Twenty four of these were feature films
and seven were television series/shows.

These projects were filmed in various locations across 16
States namely, Maharashtra, West Bengal, Gujarat, Goa,
Kerala, Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh, Sikkim, Uttar Pradesh,
Delhi, Jammu & Kashmir, Rajasthan, Punjab, Haryana,
Jharkhand and Karnataka.

Additionally, FFO facilitated the granting of Co-production

status to three of these productions, namely, Union Leader
(Indo-Canadian), Extraordinary Journey of a Fakir and Sir
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(Indo-French). Sir has also been selected for competition at
the Critics’ Week sidebar of the 71st Cannes Film Festival.

Furthermore, FFO has been engaging with two prominent
international studios namely, Paramount Pictures and
Pinewood Studios Group (UK) for Location scouting and also,
connecting them to Nodal officers, for further information on
filming opportunities in their jurisdiction.

. FFO’s Engagement with Hollywood

Subsequent to becoming a member of the Association of
Film Commissioners’ International (AFCI), FFO participated
in the AFCI’s annual industry educational event called
Cineposium in Los Angeles from 20th to 22nd October 2017.
The overall experience and knowledge acquisition will be
integrated into the operations of FFO, especially with regard
to the engagements with State Nodal Officers.

With a view to enhancing India’s image as a film friendly
destination, the FFO leveraged its association with the Motion
Pictures Association of America (MPAA) India Chapter, to
establish direct relationships with leading Hollywood Studios
in Los Angeles such as Warner Brothers and HBO and
bring them to speed with the Government’s endeavour to
ease filming in India. FFO also met with one of Canada’s
prominent motion picture companies namely Bron Studios
and connected with global OTT Service providers Netflix and
Amazon.

FFO has been engaging with the MPAA regarding issues
pertaining to policy, especially in areas of production
incentives and steps that can be taken to ease filming in
India.

. Participation at Marche Du Film, Cannes Film Market, May

17-28, 2017

FFO was present at the India Pavilion at Marche Du Film,
Cannes Film Market 2017 which served as the perfect place
for the Ministry of Information & Broadcasting, Government
of India, and the National Film Development Corporation
Limited (NFDC) to launch the Film Facilitation Office’s
Brochure, with a view to promote the ‘Film in India’ initiative
of the Government.

In addition, FFO undertook marketing of its services and
India’s locations through branding and advertisements
at prominent spaces at Marche Du Film and throughout
the pavilion. FFO also conducted a session on ‘Shooting
in India’, to showcase its endeavours to create a single-
window facilitation and clearance mechanism and promote
the country as a filming destination.

. Web Portal

FFO is in the process of setting up its web portal through
National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated (NICSI).
M/s Silver Touch Technologies has been appointed as the
Implementing Agency (IA) for establishing the dedicated web
portal that will disseminate information on filming locations
and the facilities available in India for production/post
production. Accordingly, the site will help potential production
companies looking to shoot in India to obtain permissions,
explore potential benefits (tangible and non-tangible) and
obtain an overview of various locations in India that could
benefit the storyline of the film under consideration.

In this regard the FFO has reached out to all State
Governments, the Archaeological Survey of India, the
Ministry of Railways, etc., and Industry Bodies/Guilds so as
to create a database of locations and filmic resources (crew,
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talent, facilities, stages, equipment, support services, etc.)
available across the country. A separate section on FAQs will
also be included in the site.

. Facilitation of the appointment of Nodal Officers across 29

Circles of the Archaeological Survey of India

Post several follow ups and one-on-one meetings with
ASI, FFO successfully facilitated the appointment of 29
Nodal officers across all ASI Circles, so as to ease the
permission process at various ASI sites across the country.
The recommendation was a result of a series of interactive
sessions held between ASI and film Industry delegates from
India and abroad. In addition, ASI also incorporated certain
clarifications in their filming guidelines, as recommended by
FFO, to make filming easier, in an endeavour to encourage
filmmakers to come and shoot at ASl sites, thereby promoting
them globally.

. Facilitation of ease of issuance of Film Visas through co-

ordination with the Ministry of External Affairs (MEA)

Subsequent to the easing of issuance of visa, courtesy the
Ministry of 1&B’s efforts at establishing a Film Visa, the FFO
approached the MEA to hasten the process at the level of
the Indian Mission. It was felt that international filmmakers
should have ease of filming in India from their very first
engagement with Indian officials, which was at the level of
the local Indian Mission, since this was a perfect place to
demonstrate the country’s commitment to ease of doing
business. In view of this, several brainstorming meetings
were held with the Nodal Officer appointed by the MEA,
and it was proposed that MEA could consider appointing
a designated staff member as a Nodal Officer, in select
Indian Missions across the world. The Nodal Officer would
work towards the ease of issuance of Visas for international
filmmakers, cast and crew coming to film in India. The FFO
will follow through with the MEA with regard to bringing this
endeavour to fruition.

. Facilitation of ease of filming across Railways

Recognizing the need to leverage the enormous landscape
that the Indian Railways offers to filmmakers, the FFO
engaged with the Nodal Officer of the Ministry of Railways to
understand how greater synergy between the film fraternity
and the Ministry of Railways could be created.

. FFO at IFFI and Film Bazaar 2017

During IFFI 2017, FFO met with several stakeholders from
the industry and apprised them of its role and functioning with
regards to facilitating permissions, disseminating information
through a single point, location scouting, troubleshooting
while filming and international outreach. The FFO compiled
and shared a comprehensive list of incentives currently
available for filmmakers from across 14 States — Andhra
Pradesh, Assam, Goa, Gujarat, Jharkhand, Karnataka,
Kerala, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra, Sikkim, Tamil Nadu,
Telangana, Uttarakhand and Uttar Pradesh. A session on
‘Ease of Filming’ was conducted at the Knowledge Series
by FFO, wherein it highlighted the various initiatives taken
to ease filming across Central and State Government
jurisdictions in the country.

FFO mobilised the participation of 10 State Governments
namely, Delhi, Gujarat, Jharkhand, Karnataka, Lakshadweep,
Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra, Rajasthan, Telangana and
Uttar Pradesh, with their respective Film Offices at the Film
Bazaar. The objective was to showcase their locations along
with the incentives being offered, to various filmmakers from
India and abroad.
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States of Lakshadweep (who participated for the first time
ever), Telangana, and Uttar Pradesh also conducted a
session in the Knowledge Series, highlighting their States’
film policies and their endeavour to make filming a smooth
affair, while inviting the film fraternity present at the Film
Bazaar to shoot at their locations.

9. Most Film Friendly State Award 2017

Sixteen States participated in the Most Film Friendly State
Award 2017, which was given under the aegis of the 65th
National Film Awards. Chaired by acclaimed filmmaker
Ramesh Sippy, the Jury consisted of renowned filmmakers,
Nagraj Manjule, Raja Krishna Menon, Vivek Agnihotri, and
Uday Singh, MD, Motion Picture Distributors Association.

Subsequent to the detailed analysis and discussions, the Jury
unanimously conferred the award for the Most Film Friendly
State to Madhya Pradesh for its efforts towards easing
filming in the state by creating a well-structured website,
film friendly infrastructure, offering incentives, maintaining
databases and undertaking marketing and promotional
initiatives. Madhya Pradesh also received positive feedback
from established filmmakers who have shot there.

Additionally, the Jury also decided to recognize the efforts
made by the State of Uttarakhand towards creating a film
friendly environment and hence, conferred it with a Special
Mention Certificate.

The FFO’s endeavour to create a film friendly ecosystem
within the country must be seen in this context, wherein
locations are viewed as a product development opportunity
and States as brands, thus resulting in destination branding.

Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy

The Company has an adequate internal control and Internal Audit
System commensurate with its size and nature of business. The
Internal Audit of the Company is divided into two broad areas
of operations. While a firm of Chartered Accountants based
in Mumbai audits Mumbai Head Office and Chennai Regional
Office, another firm based in New Delhi conducts the Internal
Audit of New Delhi and Kolkata Regional Offices. Further, the
Company also commissions concurrent audits of its primary
business activities of Feature Film Production, Non-Feature
Film Production and Publicity assignment of various government
departments through independent auditors. The Internal Audit
Reports are reviewed by Statutory Auditors of the Company as
well as by the Government Auditors.

The Company has adequate Internal Financial Control System
over financial reporting, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the guidance
note on audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Potential Growth Areas

Going forward, NFDC intends to continue with its plans of periodic
assessments of the gaps in the growth of the Indian film sector
and stepping into those areas with a view to fulfilling its main
objectives of facilitating the growth of the Indian film industry. To
this effect, NFDC would continue to aim to straddle the entire
gamut of the film business across the country and across various
languages cinemas, from skill and content development to
exhibition and audience development.
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NFDC has constantly attempted to identify new sources of income
in addition to existing ones and overcoming the challenges
being faced with a view to generating greater capital to enable
expansion of its activities and become a truly pan-Indian film
development body.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As per relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013, the
Company is not required to spend towards Corporate Social
Responsibility since the average net profits during the preceding
three financial years is negative.
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Auditors’ Certificate On
Corporate Governance

To,
The Member
National Film Development Corporation Limited.

We have examined the compliance of condition of Corporate
Governance by National Film Development Corporation Limited,
(“the Company”) for the year ended 31st March 2018 as stipulated
in Clause 8.2.1 of Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued
by the Department of Public Enterprises for Central Public Sector
Enterprises (CPSEs).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the
responsibility of the management. Our examination has been
limited to review of the procedures and implementation thereof,
adopted by the company, for ensuring the compliance with the
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion of financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanation given to us, we certify that the Company
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in Clause 8.2.1 of Guidelines on Corporate governance
issued by the Department of Public Enterprises for Central Public
Sector Enterprises (CPSEs).

Tasky Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number —
FRN 008730N

Manoj Kumar Sharma
Partner
Membership number — 084503

Place — Bhopal
Date — 31/10/2018

TE e fawma ora ffees



AR Gfedr JAToTgS

UdegT J% 9T fFar Sirar & foF vauwsiaY & fAcers #sd

21/06/2018

zmﬁmsﬂiaﬁgmaﬁzﬁrﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁuwzow-w

fore 3mar |@fedr & srequrers & giE i R

National Film Development Corporation Limited

(Ta.5. Q@)
e (foeT)

Certificate on Code of Conduct

21/06/2018

It is hereby declared that all Board members and Senior
management personnel of NFDC have affirmed compliance with
Code of Conduct for the financial year 2017-18.

(N.J. Shaikh)
Director (Finance)
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f&dTh 31 AT 2018

Tfyr oAt &

Particulars

Notes

delel YA

Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2018
feoqofi

31/03/2018 !
As at 31/03/2018

Amount in

31/03/2017 &
As at 31/03/2017

HecaquT or@r Afaar

fecguly I=ar 1 @ 46 I O @aor & e 397 §

sfFadY 3R aam Equity And Liabilities
TR 1 Afer Shareholders’ Funds
() 3ier ot (a) Share Capital 3 45,39,98,500 45,39,98,500
(@) ¥ Tg IRAY (b) Reserves and Surplus 4 (9,33,53,558) (23,87,90,949)
i e, TG Non-Current Liabilities
() ErTHhITad 3UR (a) Long Term Borrowings 5 60,23,288 1,00,50,616
(@) 3= Eddifaes gamd (b) Other Long-Term Liabilities 6 4,78,90,647 5,77,21,531
(1) EreiehTforh UTaYTeT (c) Long-Term Provisions 7 6,66,30,008 7,51,57,946
T, UGS Current Liabilities
() UG T (a) Trade Payables 8 2,52,63,63,519 1,05,27,36,205
(@) 37 el GIa (b) Other Current Liabilities 9 1,06,55,82,620 72,63,90,929
(3IT) TcUhIferh UTaHTel (c) Short-Term Provisions 10 4,31,92,719 1,50,74,917
T Total 4,11,63,27,743 2,15,23,39,695
CEer=sa—rd Assets
A =Tl gRaFafeaar Non-Current Assets
() TN aREFafaar (a) Fixed Assets
arEafae aRgEuRET Tangible Assets 11 5,34,49,926 6,82,79,024
3rarediase aRgeataat Intangible Assets 37,03,229 6,94,572
t’g,ﬁm H Y Capital Work-in-Progress 25,54,644 27,87,774
(@) e g Hx gRgFarT (b) Deferred Tax Asset 10,83,88,708 14,52,28,542
(31) it HoT Ta A (c) Long-Term Loans and Advances 12 1,44,56,214 1,39,69,532
e, qRrgeafeaar Current Assets
() gFI T (a) Inventories 13 10,14,792 10,85,761
(@) I uriaar (b) Trade Receivables 14 1,11,88,41,580 96,49,32,797
(31) qops 3R dF AW (c) Cash and Bank Balances 15 1,92,35,51,499 61,55,04,418
(9) 3TcUdhifersh 3RUT Td A (d) Short-Term Loans and Advances 16 86,84,21,279 33,80,22,899
() 3=g TTe] URTFTET (e) Other Current Assets 17 2,19,45,872 18,34,376
T Total 4,11,63,27,743 2,15,23,39,695
Significant Accounting Policies 2

Notes 1 to 46 are integral part of Financial Statement

FAfGATE P TART RUE & IFAR As per our report of even date eI Fsel & 3R & For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Tasky

E ol Associates

Chartered
(TH3TRUA  Accountants

008730T<1) (FRN 008730N)

Manoj Kumar
AATST FAR AT Sharma

2
. QLR Partner M.No.
TH. <. 084503 084503

T -~ .
feTid — 26 Adex 2018
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#ANS FAX ﬁ-‘P‘T Manoj Kumar Pingua

Managing Director
DIN No. 01732177

gae R
T F

01732177

Place — Mumbai
Date — 26th September 2018

Aeers (fae)

HIgAT IRIT
T.h. THUTT 4521

UAS. AW N . Shaikh

Director (Finance)

EBMETT | No. 07348075

.07348075

.. 9fer

E.J. Paul
Company Secretary
M.No. FCS 4521
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fecrep 31 AT 2018 & AT gua&mmﬂnﬁmﬁaﬁrﬁw
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2018

[y FUAT H Amount in %
Particulars a¥ 2017-18 a¥ 2016-17
Year 2017-18 Year 2016-17
3T Income
Ul O 3T Revenue from Operations 18 4,20,41,95,842 1,62,14,11,569
T 3T Other Income 19 7,00,06,100 6,00,60,497
T Total 4,27,42,01,943 1,68,14,72,066
=g Expenses
Taford < Operating Expenditure 20 3,85,48,40,312 1,47,88,04,084
gy ;Eﬁ H (qf%q—) Veir:il (Increase)/Decrease in Inventory 21 70,969 (1,78,195)
HIHP oI <IT Employee Benefits Expenses 22 7,98,39,372 8,98,41,834
33T T Other Expenses 23 11,08,47,893 9,26,76,207
EGIRRCICIGE Finance Cost 24 15,97,240 56,05,867
AT T ug gfenaa Depreciation and Amortisation 1,42,13,836 1,40,45,400
ol Total 4,06,14,09,622 1,68,07,95,197
T q‘\ﬂ' AT/ (BTeY) Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 21,27,92,320 6,76,869
ey : i g Less : Tax Expense
TTe], BT Current Tax 3,05,15,096 -
Emg—a . TEATT &Y Less : Deferred Tax 3,68,39,834 (2,18,77,122)
ST : qd a¥ & faRw /e Add : Excess Inqome Tax/MAT _ 21.00.000
graarEr arfog Provision of earlier year written back Y
FT qRIATT ATH/(E1FY) Profit/(Loss) After Tax 14,54,37,391 (1,91,00,253)
ufa sfdadr QR 3 - Earnings Per Equity Share :
(1) 7 (1) Basic 32.03 (4.21)
(2) dgpa (2) Diluted 32.03 (4.21)
HAecayuT or@Er Aifar Significant Accounting Policies 2

fecaol gear 1 9 46 d AT Rawor & 3@ 37 §

Notes 1 to 46 are integral part of Financial Statement

FAfGATE B TAR RUE & IFAR As per our report of even date 31 Fsel HI 3R & For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Tasky
R Associates
Chartered
Accountants
(FRN 008730N)

Manoj Kumar
Sharma
Partner M.No.
084503

008730Td)

HaAler FAR AT
TH. . 084503

FANST FAR ﬁ_"lm Manoj Kumar Pingua

D .
UdY TAEAB  Managing Di
. ging Director
SIS )N No. 01732177
01732177

T — Place — Mumbai
feeTiep — 26 TdeX 2018 Date — 26th September 2018

National Film Development Corporation Limited

e (fae)

e gRa
H.5p. THRAITH 4521

TR AT N . Shaikh

SEIEG

.07348075

Director (Finance)
DIN No. 07348075

g.o. gt E.J. Paul

Company Secretary
M.No. FCS 4521
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fedtier 31 AT 2018 T FATH T dY T AUchg YdTE I faRoT
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Tfy oAt & Amount in ¥
Particulars a¥ 2017-18 a¥ 2016-17
Year 2017-18 Year 2016-17
T Afafafeat & VF I. Cash Flows From
°C |1 Operating Activities
HUUTT &b Ugol YT dAH Net Profit Before Taxation 21,27,92,320 6,76,869
() THSA %‘g’ (A) Adjustments for
TR uREEaat fr Loss/(Profit) on Sale of
i T Efa/ (ar) Fixed Assets Sh2lolE 35,909
Depreciation &
qed - IR e [ES— 1,42,13,836 1,40,45,400
gfgay wuil/Holi/ Provision for Doubtful
AT F T yraara Debts/Loan/Advance G el
gqgag FOT ac Wl Bad Debts Written off 7,76,817 64,074
gﬁa“ﬂ ﬁq ggm a9 ace Fixed Assets Written Off 92,071 -
UTaaTET arfos Provisions written back 8,38,817 =
ot et g;iilt Balance Written 4659583 86,89,983
Prior Period
Q@ 3afd Fqea-ard Depreciation A2 A B
ST &I Interest Expenses 15,97,240 56,05,867
F () Total of (a) 2,67,55,317 2,99,72,944
7 . Operating Cash Profit
Fifier golt & 9Rade & | Before Working Capital 23,05,47,637 3,06,49,813
e afeld ds Changes
(@) AT &g (B) Adjustments for
FeuRy g & (gfeg)/ (Increasg)/Decrease in 70,969 (1,78,195)
a1 Inventories
afay et & (Increase)/Decrease in
(=) /o Sundry Debtors (15,58,75,521) (28,95,66,969)
. (Increase)/Decrease
q rfee FHor wd in Long Term Loans & (4,86,681) (12,59,469)
T A C) Te) /& Advances
. (Increase)/Decrease
Jeurafasd HOT vl in Short Term Loans & (50,01,34,395) (2,74,35,816)
A & (i) /@l Advances
3= gREFaaat (Increase)/Decrease in
L2} (E[ig;)L/mﬂ Other Current Assets (2,01,11,496) SEE =
Yy aeert & Increase/(Decrease) in
() /e Sundry Creditors 1,46,89,67,731 26,34,71,360
. Increase/(Decrease) in
qH & iil’as ¢aan q Long Term Liabilities & (1,83,58,822) 2,97,75,110
raure # qfee/ (@) Provision
. Increase/(Decrease) in
3Teurd EIEI'S ¢ga g Short Term Liabilities & 33,72,56,508 6,86,25,760
e 3 () /weh Provision
T (@) Total of (b) 1,11,13,28,292 4,40,85,040
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fedtier 31 AT 2018 T FATH T dY T AUchg YdTE I faRoT
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018

RURIESeE: [

Particulars

Cash Generated From

a¥ 2017-18

Year 2017-18

Amountin ¥

a¥ 2016-17
Year 2016-17

Tqws (M)

Activities (C)

eIl gRT 3cUedd Ahs Operations 1,35,08,75,929 7,47,34,853
. Income Tax (Paid)/Refund

AR (PTAIT) Pl RBS | et (3,02,63,985) 3,14,62,925

SRTYROT Fel & qF Japs | Cash Flows Before 1,32,06,11,944 10,61,97,778

Udre Extraordinary Item

gl Afafafeat | AL Net Cash From Operating

AFE () Activities (A) 1,32,06,11,944 10,61,97,778

Il. fxder afafafat & Qs | Il Cash Flows From

CIES Investing Activities

TR gRmFafat fr @i | Purchases of Fixed Assets (65,30,141) (1,18,24,973)

=t et fr Ry | Sale of Fixed Assets 51,955 83,737

frder aifafafiat & wgga | Net Cash Used In

qeg Jq*s (@) Investing Activities (B) (e (1,17,41,236)

. AT et & lll. Cash Flows From

s yaE Financing Activities

AYFITad 3UR Long Term Borrowings (40,27,328) (40,38,456)

TS AT Interest paid (20,59,350) (62,20,090)

T afafafaar & qeg Net Cash From Financing (60,86,678) (1,02,58,546)

maenmm—u’rw

Net Increase In Cash And

Cash Equivalents (A + B 1,30,80,47,081 8,41,97,996
QNZW(EF+E'+=T) +c)
Uhs dAT Uhs @1 | Opening Balance Of Cash
T HHI And Cash Equivalents 61,55,04,418 53,13,06,422
UFs @1 Ahs wageal 1| Closing Balance Of Cash 1,92,35,51,499 61,55,04,418
A And Cash Equivalents
Jehs dAT Uehs qngamff % | Component Of Cash And
re Cash Equivalents
¥F & Aw Balances with Banks
T, Wi A In Current Account 4,89,25,900 3,562,29,600
TRy ST Fixed Deposits 1,87,42,68,782 58,02,03,500
Uehs dTehT Cash on Hand 3,56,817 71,318
Tl UFs TuT A+ qAGed Total Cash And Cash
(ﬁuq-uﬁ 5 15) Equivalents (Note No.15) 1,92,35,51,499 61,55,04,418
FAfeAE B TAR RUIE & 3FAR As per our report of even date A& Fser &1 3R & For and on behalf of Board of Directors
8 AR For Tasky
§ﬂ1§ Associates FAS FAN ﬁ'deiT Manoj Kumar Pingua TS N.J. Shaikh
qeS 3prdeey Chartered gda ﬁé" D Managing Director fcere (faw) Director (Finance)
(TH3TRU  Accountants 'sﬁBIIéEE Gl DIN No. 01732177 . 13 éEE DIN No. 07348075
008730TA) (FRN 008730N) 01732177 .07348075

Manoj Kumar
Sharma
Partner M.No.
084503

AATST FAR AT
TH. . 084503

Place — Mumbai
Date — 26th September 2018

U — HFIS
feeTie — 26 fAdeR 2018

National Film Development Corporation Limited

Heuar gfa
T.%. THRAHITH 4521

5.3 qfe E.J. Paul
Company Secretary

M.No. FCS 4521
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fecaol — 2. #HAgcagoT orar Hfaa
aﬁ.amﬁav‘rm%rr{amaama"raﬁrw.
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Notes on Accounts

Note — 1. Corporate Information

National Film Development Corporation Limited (“the Company”)
is a Government company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company
is engaged in production, distribution, development and
promotion of films, including feature and audio-visual films,
media campaigns and film facilitation office. The Company has
its Head Office in Mumbai and Regional offices at New Delhi,
Chennai and Kolkata.

The Company was set up with the objective to plan, promote
and organize an integrated and efficient development of the film
industry in accordance with the national economic policy and
objectives laid down by the Central Government from time to
time. Over the years, NFDC has funded/produced more than 300
films in twenty Indian languages.

Note — 2. Significant Accounting Policies

A. Basis of Accounting and use of Estimates.

i. Financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention, on accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014.

ii. The preparation of financial statements, in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the Revenue and Expenditure of operations during the
end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are
based upon the management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results could differ from these
estimates.

B. Recognition of Revenue and related expenses
B.1 Amortization of cost of —

Films, prints, TV rights, own production of films, taken over
films and Corporation’s share in co-production of films.

B.1.1 Where the film is ready for release for exhibition on
Commercial basis before the close of the financial year, the
entire cost of production/acquisition of the films is charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Where the film is
completed but not ready for release during the year, the
entire cost of production/acquisition is shown as inventory.

B.2 Cost of production of Indian Television serials/acquired
programme and films purchased for TV rights are charged
off in the financial year in which the first telecast of such
films/serials takes place or in the financial year, in which
the rights expired, whichever is earlier.
B.3 Rights in films for distribution through Television acquired
by the Company wherein no telecast is made are accounted
as advance to the extent of the amounts paid thereof. No
provision is made for the unpaid acquisition price thereof,
since actual liability shall arise only in the event of telecast
as per terms of the agreement.
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9.4
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National Film Development Corporation Limited

B.4

B.5

B.6

B.7

B.8

B.9

Interest on loans for Films and Purchase of Equipment/
Construction of theatres is accrued and accounted in the
income only to the extent equal to principal amount and no
further credits are recognized thereafter unless the same is
actually realized.

Revenue and Expense in respect of Media Campaigns
released on behalf of various ministries/clients are
recognized in the year in which the related advertisement
or commercial spots are telecast/broadcast/appear before
the public and in respect of which necessary intimation is
received by the agency from the channel/theatre/website
for successful telecast/broadcast. Campaigns commencing
in a financial year and concluding in next financial year are
recognized in the respective financial years on the basis of
advertisement or commercial spots telecasted/broadcasted
during that year.

Revenue and Expense in respect of Non-Feature Films
produced during the year on behalf of various ministries/
clients are not recognized until the goods have been
formally accepted by the client or the client has done an
act adopting the transaction.

The funds received from the Government of India for Film
Production in various Indian languages and the expenditure
incurred up to year end out of the same is shown on net
basis under other long term liabilities in the Balance Sheet.
The actual expenditure incurred on production of films in
various Indian languages that are incomplete at the year
end and to the extent certified by Chartered Accountants
is shown as Inventory. The amount received and the
expenditure incurred on production of respective films is
shown as Income and Expenditure respectively when the
Film is ready for release. The Company accounts for its
income by way of Production Fee at 10% of the cost of
production of such films when the film is ready for release.

Income from Service Projects is recognized on Accrual
basis.

The Company has received funds from Ministry of
Information and Broadcasting, Government of India
for setting up of Film Facilitation Office (FFO). The
company will be paid compensation at the rate of 9% on
expenditure incurred for setting up of Film Facilitation
Office. The Company has accounted the revenue based on
expenditure incurred plus the service charge and disclosed
the same under the head revenue from operation and the
total expenses incurred has been disclosed under the head
operating expenditure in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The funds received from ministry is shown on net basis
under other long term liabilities in the Balance Sheet and
any funds receivable from ministry is shown under Short
term loans and advances.

C. Fixed Assets and Depreciation/Amortization

C.1

C.2

Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or
construction less accumulated depreciation/amortization
and impairment losses. Cost of acquisition or construction
is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes, incidental expenses
relating to acquisition, cost of installation/erection,
attributable interest and financial cost till such time assets
are ready for its intended use.

Depreciation on assets has been provided on the “Written
Down Value” based on useful life of the assets as prescribed
under of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 unless
otherwise stated below.
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C.3 Leasehold land is amortized over the period of lease.

C.4 Depreciation in respect of audio—visual technical
equipment’s under the head Plant and Machinery has been
provided on the Straight Line Method.

C.5 Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is charged upto 95%
of capitalized value, retaining the balance 5% as salvage
value as per the Act.

C.6 Intangible assets are amortized over the period of 5 years.

C.7 Depreciation has been provided on pro-rata basis from the
date of addition/upto the date of sale as the case may be.

C.8 Completed films for which rights have not been sold out are
valued at a nominal value of ¥ 1 each.

D. Impairment of Assets

In accordance with Accounting Standard 28 (AS 28) “Impairment
of Assets,” where there is an indication of impairment of the
Company’s assets, the carrying amounts of the Company’s
assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any impairment based on internal/external
factors. An impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, wherever the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of the assets is estimated at its net selling price or its
value in use, whichever is higher. In assessing the value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present
value at the weighted average cost of capital. After impairment,
depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the
assets over its remaining useful life. Previously recognized
impairment loss is further provided or reversed depending on
changes in circumstances.

E. Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign exchange are accounted for at the date
of transaction. Foreign currency monetary items of assets &
liabilities are reported using exchange rates prevailing at the
close of the year and exchange difference arising there from
is charged/credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-
monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

F. Provision for Doubtful debts/Advances/Loans

F.1 In respect of all Sundry Debtors/other Debts outstanding
for a period of more than 3 years other than Government
dues.

F.2 In respect of Government dues, provisions are made to
the extent considered not recoverable in the opinion of the
management.

F.3 In respect of Loans & advances, the provisions are made

for the loans and the advances to the extent considered not
recoverable by the management.

G. Inventories
G.1 Inventories include DVDs.
G.2 Inventory of video-cassettes and DVDs under Cinemas

of India label have been valued at lower of cost and net
realizable value, cost is determined as per FIFO method.
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H. Taxation

Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration
benefit admissible under the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax resulting “timing differences” between book and
taxable profit is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax asset is recognized and carried forward
only to the extent that there is a virtual certainty that the asset will
be realized in future.

I. Earning Per Share

Earning per equity share (Basic/Diluted) is calculated by
dividing the Net Profit or Loss for the year attributable to Equity
Shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year.

J. Employee Benefits
1) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company’s Employee’s Provident Fund administered
through Government Provident Fund and Labour Welfare
Fund are considered as Defined Contribution Plans. The
Company’s contributions paid/payable towards these
defined contributions plan are recognized as expense in
the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which
the employee renders the related service. The interest rate
payable by the said funds to the beneficiaries every year
is being notified by the Government. The Company has no
obligation to make good the shortfall, if any between the
return from the investment and the interest rate.

2) Defined Benefit Plan

Company’s liabilities towards gratuity, long term compensated
absences are considered as Defined Benefit Plans. The
present value of the obligations under such Defined Benefit
Plans are determined based on actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method, which recognizes each period
of service as giving rise to an additional unit of employee
benefit entitiement and measures each unit separately to
build up the final obligation. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated
future cash flows using a discount rate that is determined
by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date on
Government securities.

K. Leases

Lease transactions under operating lease are recognized as
an expense or Income in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

L. Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are liabilities that can be measured only by using
substantial degree of estimation. These are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
management estimates. Contingent liability is disclosed in
case of possible obligation where the probability of outflow of
resources is not certain or where reliable estimate of the amount
of obligation cannot be made.
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Note — 3. Share Capital

Tfr Fur #

Amount in ¥

31 AR 2018 Hi 31 AR 2017 &
As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017
Particulars
EaT Tfey q&aT Tifer
Number Amount Number Amount
gifsa Authorised
C

TAh 100 U & SfaFadr T Equity Shares of 100 each 45,40,000 | 45,40,00,000 45,40,000 | 45,40,00,000
GGG Issued

45,39,985 | 45,39,98,500 45,39,985 | 45,39,98,500

U 100 UTa & sfdadr Ay | Equity Shares of 100 each

AR 3kt ueea Subscribed & Paid up
-]
s C o & vew gfaady | Bauly Shares of 100 each ly | 45 30,085 | 45:39,98,500 45,39,985 | 45,39,98,500

Fel Total

2

45,39,985 | 45,39,98,500 45,39,985 | 45,39,98,500

Tfer oAt &

Amount in ¥

31/03/2018 = gfFadt ATd 31/03/2017 & gfFadr AT

Equity Shares as on
31/03/2018

Equity Shares as on

Particulars 31/03/2017

Ear Tfey q&aqT afr
Number

Amount Number Amount

Shares outstanding at the

L 45,39,985 | 45,39,98,500
beginning of the year

IV & URFH A I AT 45,39,985 | 45,39,98,500

a¥ & ek 3Eed
a§ & g A g AT

Allotment during the year - - = -

Shares outstanding at the end of

45,39,985 | 45,39,98,500
the year

45,39,985 | 45,39,98,500

5% W SUTET 3ATRET FT faavor

Name of Shareholder

31 ART 2018 &Y
As at 31 March 2018

R R
.

No. of

R hl
gfaera

% of

Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of shareholding

31 AR 2017 &7
As at 31 March 2017

e
No. of

erdbiic] URF HT

gfaera

% of

Shares held Holding Shares held Holding

g, FEEr vd g@RoT “President of India through
HIATS, T35 Cooll & AR Secretary Minstry of 1&B, New
HRT & Tgufa” Delhi"

45,39,983 | 99.999956% 45,39,983 | 99.999956%

Of the above 28,40,000 Shares are alloted in conversion of
Government Loan and interest accured theron into Share Capital.

AN F/OT dAT 38 U 3UTfoid <ATel & AR # gRaded
X 28,40,000 AIY 3Efed fpd I .

e Aad & Hoea ad/HAER
FHITAT B U TS 2100 AT & AE v Ao & sfFadr

AT §. PFUAT GRT AR FYAT F ATHT T STOT AT AT
forar Strar &

Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par
value of 100 per share. The Company declare and pays dividend
in Indian Rupees.
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feoaoly - 4. gTg 3t AW

Tfy ot &

Amount in %

Note — 4. Reserves And Surplus

Particulars

31 AR 2018 31 AR 2017
Fr

As at 31
March 2018

Ca)

As at 31
March 2017

®. gaiord §ag a. Capital Reserves 21,875 21,875
g, 339 99 b. Other Reserves

W g (Fatd) Special Reserve (Exports) 2,10,861 2,10,861
7. fay c. Surplus

I o faavor & 3ER AY Balance as Per last financial statement (23,90,23,685) | (21,99,23,432)

Hed-Tr g FHATISI

ST : URTENSG UTIuRd 3 & |

Less : Depreciation adjusted against
opening retained earnings

Add : Net Profit/(Net Loss) for the current

Y& A/ (YT &) e af & forw year 14,54,37,391 | (1,91,00,253)
3ifas Aw Closing Balance (9,35,86,294) | (23,90,23,685)

& Total | (9,33,53,558) | (23,87,90,949)

feoqoft - 5. Srerferes wgoT Note — 5. Long Term Borrowings i e o

I = e,
Non-Current Current
Particulars 31 AT 2018 31 AR 2017 31 &AW 2018 31 AR 2017
HI HI
As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
March 2018 March 2017 March 2018 March 2017

T Secured
-]
do grr 3mafe wHor Term Loan from Bank 60,23,288 1,00,50,616 40,38,456 40,38,456
ST : 31 TTe], T3t Less : Amount disclosed
% 99T Uhe Ty under other current 40,38,456 40,38,456
(fetaofr €. 9) Liabilities (Note No.9)

Fe Total 60,23,288 1,00,50,616 - -

®) deAs AT AT & T TIT 3R AMFd IR =T
Il Ui & fARET F IYP gRT I3 A AR &
AT &g @afd ®or form T A1 IS IEE HoT
@ 15.25% U a¥ <A1l fopam STam & 9T 3 2014 &
3,36,538 Told 1ol & 78 AT fopearl & ufaey ©.

National Film Development Corporation Limited

interest starting from April 2014.

a) Term loan was taken for the purpose of construction of
theatre at Chennai, secured by hypothecation of all Plant and
machinery and other moveable assets of Chennai Regional
Office. The said term loan carries interest @ 15.25% p.a.
and is repayable in 78 equal instalments of ¥ 3,36,538 Plus

43rd Annual Report 2017-18
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feogoly — 6. 3T QUdITad IATT

Particulars

Note — 6. Other Long Term Liabilities

31 AR 2018
F

As at 31
March 2018

Tfyr oAt &

Amount in %

31 AR 2017
F

As at 31
March 2017

FOAT U GHROT AT F Uod A (Fgs Advance_ received from Mir!istry of
feoqufy gEaT - 29) Information and Broadcasting
(Refer Note : 29)

frear fAaor & fow For Film Production 5,12,27,996 6,38,40,561
ey : e fhear &Y 2 Gl Less : Inventory of Regional Film 1,00,00,000 1,39,95,481
rea f@aoT & forw smafed dw As allocated for Film Production 4,12,27,996 4,98,45,080
hea hRATeRIT ATHE & o For Film Facilitation Office* - _
AT e Deposits Received 66,62,651 78,76,451

el Total 4,78,90,647 5,77,21,531

« T fad a¥ & alre, 3fde & dw TR 2 70,67,252
aﬁw%g&ﬁmmmﬁﬁwﬁaﬁmm%
16 )

* During the current financial year, there is a debit balance of
T 2,06,297 (Previous Year ¥ 70,67,252) which is clubbed in
Advances recoverable in cash or kind for value to be received
under Short Term Loans & Advances (Refer Note 16).

Particulars

Provision for Employee Benefits

Note — 7. Long Term Provisions

31 AT 2018
Lol

As at 31
March 2018

Tfyr oAt &

Amount in¥

31 AT 2017
&I

As at 31
March 2017

3UST Gratuity 3,93,41,055 4,59,60,074
gﬁﬁ &1 HITATA Leave Encashment 2,72,88,953 2,91,97,872
e Total 6,66,30,008 7,51,57,946

43} @i ROE 2017-18
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fecgolt — 8. gUIR& T

UIR® &I

Note — 8. Trade Payables

Particulars

Trade Payable

31 AR 2018
F

As at 31
March 2018

2,562,63,63,519

Tfyr oAt &

Amount in %

31 AR 2017
F

As at 31
March 2017

1,05,27,36,205

Total

2,52,63,63,519

1,05,27,36,205

feoqoft - 9. 37 aTe qIaA@

Note — 9. Other Current Liabilities

31 AR 2018
F

Particulars

As at 31
March 2018

Tfyr oAt &

Amount in %

31 AR 2017
F

As at 31
March 2017

ErepITores KU & adHT TRUFaar rafy Current maturities of Long Term Borrowing 40,38,456 40,38,456
SOTST 3UTford 2T & Interest Accrued and Due 2,33,146 6,95,256
el ¥ urg 3PA Advance from Customers 32,94,79,478 42,57,88,550
e &% o 3 Advance for Production 18,03,05,746 19,73,34,205
3T Others Advances 4552,815 5,28,391
gifaf®e ¢ Statutory Dues 43,49,48,330 3,23,01,468
g ATy Other Liabilities 11,20,24,649 6,57,04,602

Tl Total | 1,06,55,82,620 72,63,90,929
feogoft — 10. rcurafdes uraura Note — 10. Short Term Provisions TR st A

(F) F1fdA® a7 F AT graem=r

Particulars

(a) Provision for Employee Benefits

31 AT 2018
Lol

As at 31
March 2018

31 AT 2017
Lo

As at 31
March 2017

3USTET Gratuity 38,28,840 43,25,173
§z‘é’r T HIATA Leave Encashment 44,38,783 63,39,744

(@) FUT & T gaue (b) Provision for Taxation
3T HY & foT For Income Tax 3,49,25,096 44,10,000
Total 4,31,92,719 1,50,74,917

National Film Development Corporation Limited
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fecgoly — 12. wifoe H®oT Ta JPH

Note — 12. Long Term Loans And Advances

ufyr Tuay A

Amountin¥

. 31 AT 2018 HY 31 AT 2017 &
Particulars
As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017
1) FAARAT § f@w xor | 1) Loans and advances to
ug 3w Staff
- 3, o er gr;(sjzcured, Considered _ _ 960 960
2) freAl & fA=Tor & fAw | 2) Loans for Production
FHOT of Films
Hieaer Doubtful 1,44,02,720 1,44,02,720
dowt Sy | Leshokorr SR :
3) f=emE & fa#r & | 3) Loans for Construction
T FHor of Theatres
ICT ) Doubtful 2,98,703 2,98,703
sy — Hfedy Hol & Less:Provision for 598703 _ 298703 _
T graera doubtful loans T T
4) AT 4) Deposits
Jof, Ty gzzzcured’ Considered 1,44,56,214 1,39,68,572
sy Considered Doubtful 31,230 31,230
;amgﬂ : AT 1] Biisb;fslrg‘g;'g;tgor 31,230 | 1,44,56,214 31,230 | 1,39,68,572
FT Total 1,44,56,214 1,39,69,532
)
- i Ty oAt H
fecolt — 13, gFufa ¥ Note — 13. Inventories T e

Particulars

Finished Goods

31 AR 2018
F

As at 31
March 2018

31 AR 2017
F

As at 31
March 2017

Stock of DVD

10,14,792

10,85,761

Total

10,14,792

10,85,761

National Film Development Corporation Limited
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feogoly — 14. AUORS Ut

i

Note — 14. Trade Receivables

Particulars

Unsecured

31 AT 2018
Lol

As at 31
March 2018

TR St H

Amountin

31 AT 2017

HI
As at 31

March 2017

F) O AR ¥ SIMET THMAT ARG
gifeaar

a) Trade Receivables outstanding more
than six months

]

rgfeaer Considered Good 56,09,89,619 | 37,40,15,945
gfesy Considered Doubtful 19,90,87,982 20,48,85,170
76,00,77,601 57,89,01,114
"erst ;- dfeey Hoi & v urau= Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts 19,90,87,982 20,48,85,170
56,09,89,619 37,40,15,945

) I b) Others
rgfeaer Considered Good 55,78,51,960 59,09,16,852
o Total | 1,11,88,41,580 96,49,32,797

%@Eﬁwzﬁﬁmmuﬁmﬂﬁﬁ%sﬂﬁvm

arg & [ag [y aEr = .

fecgoft — 15. Qs AT Abhs UdTE

1. g TUT NFh3 FAIA

is considered as due date.

Note — 15. Cash And Bank Balances

31 AT 2018
Lo

Particulars

1. Cash and Cash Equivalent

As at 31
March 2018

As the due date of collection has not been defined hence bill date

Tfr Fur #

Amount in ¥

31 AR 2017
Lol

As at 31

March 2017

&) dp A AV a) Balances with Banks
(i) ey @i A (i) Current Account 4,89,25,900 3,52,29,600
(ii) He m Ty 3 At ¥ & ar | (i) ;I;]e;nmngz?jrl]t: with original maturity of less 1.34.01,05,620 |  37.67.49.742
g) hg drehr b) Cash on Hand 3,56,817 71,318
1,38,93,88,336 41,20,50,660
2. 3T 4% AW 2. Other Bank Balance
(i) Ao uRueFadr & @Y 3 AT @ 3w | () Term Deposits with original maturity of
& grafy AT q\gﬁ more than 3 months
12 ARl ¥ HA but less than 12 months 15,69,213 11,04,53,850
(ii) g uﬁqa-aa?;rT E}%ﬂw 12 ARt @ 3 | (i) Igrmoafﬁssns with maturity for more than 44,97 71,075 5.31,91.579
(iii) b ITREY b ATHS Alfored UIA & &y F | (i) Term Deposits held as margin money
@ 3af S against bank guarantee. 8,28,22,875 3,98,08,329
53,41,63,163 20,34,53,758
Xl Total | 1,92,35,51,499 61,55,04,418

43t affe RAE 2017-18
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fecguly — 16. 37eUra@i®er KUT T FA

Particulars

1) Loans and advances to

1) FHalaEt & fw wor

As at 31 March 2018

Note — 16. Short Term Loans And Advances
31 AR 2018 &7

ufyr Tuay A

Amountin¥

31 AR 2017 &Y
As at 31 March 2017

g A=A Staff
. Unsecured, Considered
ufasd, ey Good 4,711 4,711 1,40,708 1,40,708
2) IE AT IEIRT # gyt | 2) Advances recoverable
Aed & T & agd in cash or kind for
TNex A ® value to be received
. Unsecured, Considered
Jmfasyd, 3ty Good 5,50,28,001 12,57,50,759
gieaer Considered Doubtful 12,18,000 12,18,000
maag'gmﬂaw RO (| eSS provision for 12,18,000 |  5,50,28,001 12,18,000 | 12,57,50,759
Sen e T ; zesr_\I{me Tax Receivable/ 69,38,70,417 12,28,77,630
¥ VAT Receivable 20,857 20,857
P T FH T Advance Payment of Tax 11,94,89,417 81,33,80,691 8,92,25,432 21,21,23,919
3) T@HX et & AT 3) Advances for Own
AT Production of Films
. Unsecured, Considered
s, 3rafery Good 7,876 7,876 7,513 7,513
& Total 86,84,21,279 33,80,22,899
feoquly — 17, 31T dArel uRFFafaT Note — 17. Other Current Assets rR o 7

31 AT 2018 31 AR 2017
. Cal H
Particulars
As at 31 As at 31
March 2018 March 2017
TARN STHT uT Sutfeld <arer Interest Accured on Fixed Deposit 2,19,45,872 18,34,376
Total 2,19,45,872 18,34,376

National Film Development Corporation Limited
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fecgoft — 18. Uged @ 3™

Note — 18. Revenue From Operation

ufyr Tuay A

Amount in ¥

Particulars a¥ 2017-18 a¥ 2016-17
Year 2017-18 Year 2016-17

HrR fred FaToT Feature Film Production - -
R PR frea QAaToT Non Feature Film Production 1,46,85,34,248 67,62,52,842
rear SRARRT 3ifrg Film Facilitation Office 2,18,97,496 2,85,56,130
AT Foa Media Campaign 2,46,69,50,351 73,90,16,977
freAT &1 favor Distribution of Films

el Overseas 39,92,971 1,05,92,515

o], Domestic 1,66,87,057 2,06,80,028 9,90,20,451 | 10,96,12,966
Far IR Service Projects

HIIQATAT /TSR / hed Workshop/Market/Film 2.37.51,795 2.50,83,905

GIIIES Bazaar

IRGVCIE UG Training/Workshop 3,02,00,559 1,33,93,712

TARS Festivals 16,44,98,126 1,89,22,065

cEj g veTeIR Preview Theatre 76,83,239 1,05,72,971

Tl Total 4,20,41,95,842 1,62,14,11,569

feoqofy — 19. 3T 3™ Note — 19. Other Income TR it 5
Particulars a¥ 2017-18 a¥ 2016-17
Year 2017-18 Year 2016-17
FRTIT HIAT FT fRaAT Rent from Office Premises 1,74,05,960 1,70,45,617
¥ TR FHERITY @Y <Are Interest on Bank Fixed Deposit 4,50,59,251 1,13,24,881
¥ fr gRg 99 W e Interest on Savings Bank 79,633 22,452
Ay Nhs qT =17 Interest on TDS Refund 12,72,416 1,41,85,131
afae 3mT Miscellaneous Income 6,90,440 4,26,178
CE-‘T Tl TS Prior Period ltems — 83,66,256
Tl arfag Provisions written back 8,38,817 -
ST Qv arfug Credit Balances written back 46,59,583 86,89,983
Total 7,00,06,100 6,00,60,497

68 434} a1ffes RA1E 2017-18
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fecyoly — 20. yafed

Note — 20. Operating Expenditure

ufyr Tuay A

Amountin¥

Particulars a¥ 2017-2018 a¥ 2016-2017
Year 2017-18 Year 2016-17
R hedr [aToT Feature Film Production - -
IR OER BT BT | o o 1,13,38,13,142 59,98,65,052
rea wiAfeeT 3HfrE Film Facilitation Office 2,00,89,446 2,61,98,285
AT Fa Media Campaign 2,47,73,07,015 74,43,89,327
At &1 fQazor Distribution of Films
el Overseas 30,90,407 26,70,022
El'l?{ Domestic 1,35,44,097 1,66,34,504 1,33,32,670 1,60,02,691
a1 RIS Service Projects
SETATET /TSR Rea TR | oy 0 U 4,10,62,085 6,08,88,824
ufretor va e Training & Development 94,98,045 1,05,74,931
TARE Festivals 15,28,67,749 1,70,07,239
qgj OGRS TR Preview Theatre 35,68,326 38,77,734
Fa Total 3,85,48,40,312 1,47,88,04,084
3

feoqufy — 21, @ufa g@r & () /FA  Note — 21. (Increase)/Decrease In Inventories T ¥ &

Amount in %

: . gite)/w+t a§  (gRa)/FA a¥
a¥ 2017-18 a¥ 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17
Particulars (Increase)/ (Increase)/
Year 2017-18 Year 2016-17 Decrease Year Decrease Year
2017-18 2016-17
SN FT Terh Stock of DVD 10,14,792 10,85,761 70,969 (1,78,195)
Fe Total 10,14,792 10,85,761 70,969 (1,78,195)
]
feogoft — 22. FfAS e Note — 22. Employee Benefit Expenses iR e o

Particulars ¥ 2017-18 a¥ 2016-17

Year 2017-18  Year 2016-17
dad, W 3R deg Salaries, Wages and Bonus 6,34,57,012 6,63,73,124
afasy ARt F 3= Contributions to Provident Fund 55,41,985 59,48,894
3= AR F e Contributions to Other Fund 44,233 45,881
Eféa &1 I Leave Encashment 23,84,210 53,47,276
B AGH Gratuity 32,80,563 78,48,266
AFd T Medical Expenses 51,31,369 42,78,394
Fa Total 7,98,39,372 8,98,41,834

3

National Film Development Corporation Limited
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Particulars

Note — 23. Other Expenses

a¥ 2017-18

Year 2017-18

a¥ 2016-17
Year 2016-17

a¥ 2017-18
Year 2017-18

afr zut #

Amount in ¥

a¥ 2016-17
Year 2016-17

fa<maa 3N g Advertisement and Publicity 1,00,701 47,680
o@r adieTpt o1 arfesfdes | Auditors Remuneration 5,50,000 5,50,000
¥p g Bank Charges 6,48,094 1,25,632
M HOT aeC @ # | oy Debts Written Off 60,86,291 1,50,197
3ol I
HeI3U : Tfeey ®U & Less : Provision for Doubtful

o Debts Utilised 53,09,474 86,123 7,76,817 64,074

! Director's Travelling
fACeMmpl @1 I Iy e 8,72,812 12,69,395
sl UHR Electricity Charges 29,09,257 31,91,171
BISTeET B Filing Fees 1,800 2,000
;2”;% a m?m Al GCE WA | Fixed Assets Written Off 92,071 -
GIE:I Insurance 3,20,469 3,36,928
AdTE qA da B W Interest on TDS and Service 11,42,033 17,05,210
st Tax
e g Legal Expenses 32,91,072 39,45,753
el AaT af9d g & 3ar | Loss on_Fore|gn Exchange 39,466 772,637
TJerd W &l Fluctuation
uRgFafa & fasht @ @ifa | Loss on Sale of Assets 9,566 35,909
FEATNT JHEET 9T Office General Expenses 35,82,620 28,91,948
Zh, dR, o 3K Postage,Telgrams, Telex
AL TG e and Telephone Expenses 13,19,633 10,78,874
SUTS 3R @ gl Printing & Stationery 16,55,858 14,36,697
FRTINT AT I Professional Charges 4,65,74,502 3,72,04,310
dfeey ot/ =it /3173#AT & | Provision for Doubtful
T UraeT Debts/Loan/Advance 3,51,104 15,:31,711
q\—(} A #c Prior Period ltems 95,40,573 -
U0 T AU Rates & Taxes 15,51,930 14,12,784
adf <o Recruiting Exp 1,67,809 97,574
fomra sparaTe Rent Paid 1,33,31,960 1,35,63,133
FAFAT 3R JHXETOT Repairs & Maintenance 49,46,723 44,52,682
& {aT UHR Security Services Charges 29,36,024 25,46,780
T W ved Service Tax Paid 2,44,724 12,64,302
HIfFF FATIT =TT Staff Welfare Expenses 17,43,285 17,083,919

Swachhta Action Plan
TITodl HF AT g Expenses 38,98,621 33,35,407
Travelling and Local
AT AR TS AT A Conveyance Expenses 82,43,849 81,06,909
e /anad de CST/VAT Paid 4,521 2,788
Total 11,08,47,893 9,26,76,207




ufyr Tuay #

Amount in ¥

Note — 24. Finance Cost

. a¥ 2017-18 a¥y 2016-17
Particulars
Year 2017-18  Year 2016-17
ST T Interest Expense 15,97,240 56,05,867
Fo Total 15,97,240 56,05,867
fecgolt — 25. HHREAS ST & forw graura A&7 forar s — N
Note — 25. Contingent Liabilities not provided for — “Aﬁmoﬁqnfmﬁ
fQazor Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
1| oA & fawee Frefer gaor Legal cases against the Company 7,91,15,079 7,63,49,079
lire=ry %71’ o & gt & fow e Claim against Company for increase in rental
2 | faweg grar Rfaa =ame # 3fAafdia xor | for the premises not acknowledged as debts 10,38,080 10,38,080
T goE T AT T8 B T pending in Civil Court.
. ! Balance salary payable to Senior General
g&ugi EIFCSIU‘ Td SEIAS P lec aafrm & Manager, suspended earlier on the 8.46.016 8.46.016
3| 3T # g¢ a sFemvEyS T charges of mis-representation of facts and S T
Y A impounding of documents.
3R RARIA 1961 Hr 9T 271 (1) (&) | Penalty levied for the assessment ygar 2005-
4 | p I AT 1T HEYAq & IHFEAR w 06 as per order issued u/s 271 (1) (C) of - 7,00,000
a¥ 2005-06 & faT @;ﬂ Income Tax Act 1961.
3MIRY ITATATHT 1961 & URT 154 & Income Tax demand for the assessment year
5 | 37T A & HIAR W a¥ 2006- | 2013-14 as per Order issued u/s 143 (3) of 1,95,32,210 1,95,32,210
07 & o 3mgeY JTFI=ET the Income Tax Act 1961
Har &Y T, ATy ?[ e ag 2010-11 | service Tax Demand towards the irregular
¥ 2013-14 & T%I'U deFde fse st & cenvat credit availed by NFDC under Rule 14
6 | e 6(3) & AT TATHER GRT UIE : o 21,78,262 21,78,262
N of Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 for the financial
mﬁrm@mﬁ ?ft & fow HROT T | year 2010-11 to 2013-14.
7 | AEHT B X ;rr‘;,L 5 . Bank Guarantee given to Customers 8,28,22,875 3,98,08,329
Jar R AIA, 1994 & FIH 6 & ded Demand of service tax under rule 6 of
8 | ¥ar & HT AT O JAATA, 1994 & service tax rules,1994 read with proviso to 1,58,50,899 -
URT 73 (1) & UGU & T g IS, section 73 (1) of finance act,1994
T Total | 20,13,83,421 | 14,04,51,976

feogoly — 27.1. ey vg G@iegsy ot & o
T

a¥ & ST 3eMey vd dfesy Hom & O T 3,51,104 (Roo
Iy % 15,31,711) & ATAYT STERT TAT FKUT T 7TAAT T Uraey
fopam T & 9§ & Sl fRY 9 ¥ 53,09,474 (Moo ay¥
% 86,123) & UIGUT @l g dAT WiGTY HOUN & ford A F o
forr mar. a¥ & g AfaRe uaue St a¥ & R acer
PreT R T % 8,38,817 (e a¥ g =7¢).

National Film Development Corporation Limited

Note — 26.

The balances in Sundry Debtors, Loans and Advances, Deposits
and Current Liabilities including outstanding balances since
last few years are subject to confirmation and consequential
adjustment, if any on reconciliation. The financial impact, if any,
is unascertainable.

Note — 27.1. Provision for Bad and Doubtful
Debts

During the year provision for bad and doubtful debts of % 3,51,104
(Previous year ¥ 15,31,711) has been made towards Sundry
Debtors and Loans and Advances. Provision of ¥ 53,09,474
(Previous year % 86,123) towards bad and doubtful debts has
been utilized for the bad debts during the year. Excess provision
written back during the year % 8,38,817 (Previous year - NIL)
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fecgufly — 27.2. Azeq HT Tl ATHATT HIAT
O3 qIhIY T I91d1.

Ao BT TP Ufd ASH 1 & AHAAT Hed WX A I
saﬁ;wwamﬁaquéqﬁmﬁﬁasfﬂs%rﬁmﬁm
I R

fecquly — 27.3. AFERT &1 Red dh

HEYAT & AU o 3 AHA # dedeR Reel deh i &1 Aoy
frar Ser ¥ ey 7 P 3FAIG A A TE F IFET W
P aRIT oder i T & 46,59,583 (oot a¥ T 86,89,983)

Note — 27.2. Stock of Medals retained at
nominal value.

Stock of Medals is disclosed at nominal values of ¥ 1 each.
The nominal value of these Medals is disclosed in Fixed Assets
Schedule.

Note — 27.3. Creditors Written Back

The management of the Company has decided to write back
creditors in cases where there is no likelihood of liability arising.
Accordingly during the year creditors amounting to ¥ 46,59,583

Reat de oY e 3.

fecguly — 28. wIfdAd oTH

UISies AT hiSe Pl 3UINT HId §U THIURTS JogUA &

YR W a«gwm

(i) o aur g & {AaRor & Y ™ aAvw @

afdr Tgar &

Description

(Previous year ¥ 86,89,983) have been written back.

Note — 28. Employee Benefits

Valued as per Actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit

Method

(i) Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

qan)
At 31, 2018

Gratuity

(Funded)

March 31,
2018

, 2017

Gratuity

(Funded)

March 31,
2017

A 31, 2018

Leave
Encashment
(Unfunded)
March 31,
2018

Amountin¥

AR 31, 2017

Leave
Encashment
(Unfunded)
March 31,
2017

TqTe] Jar oITg Current Service Cost 17,80,726 17,84,220 16,78,621 14,43,306
TS AT Interest Cost 34,29,454 35,46,073 24,23,665 26,46,162
el dATRF (m) VG Net Actuarial (Gains)/Losses (36,35,990) 25,17,973 (17,18,076) 12,57,808
Past Service Cost — Vested
Qo1 {aT AT ~ A & | Benefit Recognised during 17,06,373 _ - _
ARt Feadr urE fafed @ the period
Fa Total 32,80,563 78,48,266 23,84,210 53,47,276
o

(i) ¥g TREafeaa/(eamian) St & e & quid a8 §

(ii) Net Assets/(Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet

et Amount in %
gan) an)
AT 31, 2018 AT 31, 2017 AT 31, 2018 AT 31, 2017
Description . . Leave Leave
(gr?‘t:'té’) (ﬁ:?:::g) Encashment Encashment
unde (Unfunded)  (Unfunded)
March 31, March 31, March 31 March 31
2018 2017 2018 2017
fuiRa aifica @1 ademar | Present Value of Defined (457,95404) | (5,12,22,899) | (3,17,27,736) | (3,55,37,616)
T Obligation
ST IRFFARTAT BT AL | Fair Value of Plan Assets 26,25,509 9,37,652 . a
T
Aot Rufy (3w, Fun(;lqd Status [Surplus/ (4,31,69,895) | (5,02,85,247) _ —
(@men)] (Deficit)]
ortE IREFITR/(SFETT) Net Asset/(Liability) | (4,31,69,895) | (5,02,85,247) | (3,17,27,736) | (3,55,37,616)
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- qfeyr ToAT H
(iii) a¥ & ghuer aregarHt # gRader iii) Change in Obligation during the year Amount in

3 (R 3uee (R
GaR) EaR)

AT 31, 2018 AN 31, 2017 0 20000

Leave
Encashment
(Unfunded)

AR 31, 2017

Leave
Encashment
(Unfunded)

Description
Gratuity
(Funded)

Gratuity
(Funded)

March 31,
2018

March 31,
2017

March 31,
2018

March 31,
2017

(iv) a¥ & e afEdeaat & afads

Description

Fair Value of Plan Assets at

Gratuity

(Funded)

March 31,
2018

(iv) Change in Assets during the year

Zan)

gam) <
A 31, 2018 AR 31, 2017

Gratuity

(Funded)

March 31,
2017

)
31, 2018

Leave
Encashment
(Unfunded)
March 31,
2018

. Present Value of the Defined
af & uRFH A AURT M | enefit Obligation at the 512,22,809 | 45477220 | 3,5537,616| 3,37,09,072
e 1 adA Hed beginning of the Year
e FaT 9T Current Service Cost 17,80,726 17,84,220 16,78,621 14,43,306
TS 9T Interest Cost 34,93,402 35,69,962 24,23,665 26,46,162
Past Service Cost — Vested
I HAT AT — 3T & Benefit incurred during the 17,06,373 - - -
AR A o AT I | periog
. . Liability transferred in/
FATY FEAARA/ AT | 5equisitions 2,78,674 - 20,098 6,79,850
. . Liability Transferred out/
AT FATATT R/ fafaer Divestment) (2,29,828) - - -
RATRD (1) /& Actuarial (Gains)/Losses (35,11,791) 25,79,619 (17,18,076) 12,57,808
ST I Benefit Payments (89,45,051) (21,88,131) (62,14,188) (41,98,582)
S Present Value of the 4,57,95,404 5,12,22,899 3,17,27,736 3,55,37,616
¥ & 3a A e amr ' A
Defined Benefit obligation
e #T qA Ted at the end of the year
Tfr oAt #F

Amount in %

Leave

Encashment
(Unfunded)

March 31,
2017

a¥ & 3d & e
TReEFafeadl #1 qeg qo7

the year end

aREFafEt & e A the beginning of the Year 9,37,652 3,04,313 - -
el aREFIREA uT i:ggtc;ed Return on Plan 63,948 23.889 _ _
T ontribution by Employer ,01,66, ,39, = -

ERT 3E Contribution by Empl 1,01,66,087 27,35,935
gREFafa saEaidas Assets Transferred In/ > 78.674 _ _ _

37rET Acquisitions T

ved arediad oreT Actual Benefits Paid (89,45,051) (21,88,131) = =
QYo R WY SiFfeg | Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on _ _

et (@) Plan Assets 1,24,199 61,646
Fair Value of Plan Assets at 26,25,509 9,37,652 - -

National Film Development Corporation Limited
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(v) e e

Description

v) Actuarial Assumptions

&anr)
AT 31, 2018

Gratuity

(Funded)

March 31,
2018

Gratuity

(Funded)

March 31,
2017

, 2018

Leave
Encashment
(Unfunded)
March 31,
2018

afyr oy A

Amountin¥

Leave
Encashment
(Unfunded)
March 31,
2017

FeeITd &< Discount Rate 7.80% 6.82% 7.80% 6.82%
:;ag gREFaEt w3 ;{:;itzf Return on Plan 7.80% 6.82% _ _
Salary Escalation Rate 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%

33

«qq A 3Uerey ofig Ifafre afta o av & 5 1 oRafaes
# gared fopar I &

(m)mﬁwﬁ;ﬁﬁma%ﬁaaﬂfrasa@gﬁwaﬁa;
Hedihed H AT AT PR B e B
Fafdr & 3R W faar fomar o g

(@) T & AT & 3HFER Fuh & wraRAr Hr dar Aghy
&1 31g 60 ay¥ §.

fecqgofy — 29.

AT TUT JEROT AAST o 30AT Ao fafay AR st
A fped QAT &1 TFIcadsl TAUREET I Tt 3@ A=
& AT 313 2018 dH T 50.60 IS H AR urd gS.
ay & SN 39 fhedl & faaRor & vorea wifd & WA
% 22,76, 286 (U a¥ ? 2,23,78,647) & T dual o 3
d. 202/21/2009-U6 (RUHY) Al 04.08.2009 HT 2rdl &
AdTID GA: ST Aot H o9 e

HUA  heal F Aawor 6 #7ig # T 8,93,370 T fpr (Moot
a§ : T 74,72,587) S 3¢ ASTell & Id9Td gell Rhedl & TR
3R fremue F @9 gu

frewr fadtor & fow gaar dor garer #aed & el 3P
TR TAT 36 FGUAT HT AHTUT 36 TPR & —

*Including Leave Benefit availed during the year which is
accounted in Salary paid during the year.

a) The estimates of future salary increases considered in
actuarial valuation take into account the inflation rate on
Long term basis.

b) The employees of the company retire at the age of 60 years
as per the policy of the Company.

Note — 29.

The Ministry of Information and Broadcasting entrusted to
NFDC the execution of its Plan Scheme of “Production of filims
in various Indian languages”. Under the scheme, an amount
of ¥ 50.60 Crore was received up to 31 March 2018. Revenue
generated from distribution of these films during the year is
¥ 22,76,286 (Previous Year ¥ 2,23,78,647) that has been
ploughed back by Company into the scheme as per the terms of
the Order no.202/21/2009-F (PSU) dated 04.08.2009.

The company has incurred an expenditure of ¥ 8,93,370 towards
distribution of films (Previous Year % 74,72,587) for publicity and
advertising of release of films under the above scheme.

The break up of advance received from the Ministry of Information
and Broadcasting for film production and their utilization are as

under — fer s &
Amount in ¥
31 A 2018 31 AR 2017
Particulars =
As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2018 March, 2017
e e ::(\j/aéﬁz criic;eslt:/:; from Ministry of Information
g I & o Received in Earlier Year 50,60,00,000 49,60,00,000
aTe] av & utm Received in Current Year — 1,00,00,000
() (A)| 50,60,00,000 50,60,00,000
N SN — gaﬁfrqr T B él(:)(t ;thggs from Sale/Revenue Generation
g a9 ;A In Earlier Year 9,19,55,992 6,95,77,351
AT av F In Current Year 22,76,286 2,23,78,647
U] 9,42,32,278 9,19,55,992
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ufyr Tuay A

Amount in ¥
31 AT 2018 31 A 2017
. Y Cal
Particulars
As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2018 March, 2017
gerst — faawor/uar e Less — Distribution/Publicity Expenses
T v ; In Earlier Year 2,70,28,560 1,95,55,973
qTe] ag # In Current Year 8,983,370 74,72,587
(1 2,79,21,930 2,70,28,560
(1-Im) 6,63,10,348 6,49,27,432
fhea AT & T 3qarstr Tl @ (@) Total Fund available for Film Production (B) | 57,23,10,348 | 57,09,27,432
st — fhed @&A0T & fow Tl ™ =g | Less — Total Fund expensed for Film
e I Production
T a¥ & SR <og fopw 91w Expensed during the current year 1,39,95,481 =
9 ¥ & =g U av Expensed in earlier year 50,70,86,871 50,70,86,871
& fhear fr g Inventory of Regional Film 1,00,00,000 1,39,95,481
Rffie real & RT 3mElRa (F - @) As allocated for various films (A-B) | 53,10,82,352 | 52,10,82,352
4,12,27,996 4,98,45,080

fecgofy — 30.

I dUT YAROT AT & UF HE&AT TH-35014/16/2015-3131
(FI) &M 8 SITadr 2016 & A FAAT TAUT THROT FATT
wd T fhea e o fafdes & 9= AT THROT
FATSTT T Rbcd BTSRRI 3PT (THUH3N) TART F &
mw@mmwmmga. THRUR3T TR S &
forT F@ar aur gaReT #AET $T 3R F T 3,27,00,000 (e
a¥ 1,70,00,000) Fgpd I ¥ . a§ F R FHUAr A
¥ 2,18,97,496 (oot a9 2,85,56,130) &l TelEd ATWA=H T
T & I gof fRaT gum e/ /e & A 7 T 2,00,89,446
(Moot a¥ 2 2,61,98,285) &7 WY Uddlel I & di¥ W fe@mr.

fecgofy — 31.

fA2ers Fiser F 15 RAdeR 2009 & IMAFAT 31U Tgel Job A
JAT YEROT HATST I 3R F 918 g HEIT 202/21/2009
-- % (divay) & 06.08.2009 W AR frar. fagers #Fsd
& g AT A7 6 Reear 337 3 yafod Aaa & 3gs0 &
T8 hear e Ao ot oY RaTar i Brg & & F frea
AT Fr For AT P 10 UfAAT TA TAEF GRT FUA IS
=T @ ARt w15 ufderd weliee fear oy o=ifes 3
aﬁﬁﬂxa?ﬁmﬁwamﬁw—mmrmr—crm% s‘d’r
ﬁnm?raru‘ra?a‘m;r a’r g
I ARAX TE (Moo af ) & g
? 4,01,697 ( ag T 39,4 9172)ﬁw—mn’r ﬁzﬁraxaﬂﬂ’r?m
aamﬁaaﬁﬁ%%—%ﬁmﬁmﬁwmaﬁmw%.

fecgofy — 32.

Az Releit & o 317 g av & g o 713 Afzar
FUH & TS U T T & AW, Tepree /3AsdHEe /Ui
P T REUal & Hed & TRH/FHIGT GRT

aEAdS Hed @ HAA SWHR gRT FeAUA /YA & dlg
fopar Srar & AfEEr wPEEl F o gEEy #7 qo 3R g
oaer v @wa collre /yaror/faema & suffafa &

National Film Development Corporation Limited

Note — 30.

As per letter No. M-35014/16/2015-DO (FI) dated 8th January,
2016 of the Ministry of Information and Broadcasting,
Memorandum of Understanding was signed between Ministry of
Information and Broadcasting and National Film Development
Corporation Ltd for setting up of Film Facilitation Office (FFO)
of Ministry of | & B. The Ministry has sanctioned an expenditure
of ¥ 3,27,00,000 (Previous Year % 1,70,00,000) in connection
with setting up of Film Facilitation Office. During the year, the
company has accounted the Revenue of % 2,18,97,496 (Previous
Year % 2,85,56,130) and disclosed the same under the head
Income from Operations and the expenditure of ¥ 2,00,89,446
(Previous Year % 2,61,98,285) has been disclosed under the
head Operating Expenditure in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Account.

Note — 31.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 15th September
2009 considered the letter N0.202/21/2009-F (PSU) dated
06/08/2009 received from the Ministry of Information &
Broadcasting and decided that NFDC should be given a
Production Fee of 10% of the total cost of production of a film and
15% Commission on all sales effected by it in accordance with
industry norms as these expenses are an intrinsic component
of the production and distribution budgets of a film. Accordingly
the Company has accounted for ¥ NIL (Previous year ¥ NIL)
as Production Fees in the current year in respect of NIL films
completed during the year and ¥ 4,01,697 (Previous year
¥ 39,49,172) as Commission on sale of films which is included in
Distribution of films.

Note — 32.

Revenue recognition for Media Releases, Revenue and
Expense of respective Media Campaign undertaken during the
year is accounted for after due verification/certification by the
Chartered Accountants of the actual value of telecast/broadcast/
appearance of the advertisement out of the Release amounts
approved by the client/ministry. Revenue and Expenses in

43rd Annual Report 2017-18

75



76

AEATID Hed BT FodlUel/THUTA T Uichar ol /el o
ag 1 ygiy & HAA iU/l @ HA fhr
FHEITAT A B NellaT ARG & YR W HATdH IR
W IOTAT T ST &

fecgofy — 33.

facers Figer & I # are uRwufal, ol va HfIAT Hr <aw
Tt S STA3M @1 grauE wAE © 3R eI RAgRe IRy
q ST el AT ST,

fecqofy — 34.

ShUAT Y 3T oY, oY Td ALYH 3Usha T HTATTTH 2006
z a@rﬂﬁiﬁm@ aru‘ragﬁ’ﬁa?’r .
i eoll . T a9 &b 3T A YT A
e dfed 3ar &7 ¥ wafa gsdieon, afg a8, S
AT & iafa g &, @ o mar . 9y

fafay dder gafaa wféar & F faT &
IoreTT T TG B FI AT ST BT graare fohar

fecgoft — 35.

1991 & F© g FURl @ R W@ & & ug S R
30,00,000 (U&er a8 ¥ 30,00,000) it Urfeat &

IRT AT, WA A I A e 781 3R degadt gfasfaat &
aREaATT 7 A€ TohaT 1. 39 St WA 1 gt & o
a1 UIfeal & Tavg ALIEIAT BRIATRT URH & ar

& WY TH FLYEIAT HRAGE B o oo & gar d ganm
aur & uifedt & AN # ¥ T18,00,000 FH A

1 e fer ar. (oo 9y 2 18,00,000). HEIEAT BT
3737 T T T, SHHAT oWl WAl H Sooll el AT AT &.

cTqull — 36.
e ey & NRATS TR & 1T 3T & AHST H oH

*»
Pl @ F 1,33,31,960 . (el a¥ 21,35,63,133).

434} a1ffes RA1E 2017-18

respect of media campaigns for which verification/certification
of the actual value of successful telecast/broadcast/appearance
of advertisement in process, are accounted for on provisional
basis on the basis of Release amounts of respective campaign
reduced by the estimated drop/deduction as per the trend of
previous/current financial year.

Note — 33.

In the opinion of the Board, the current assets, loans and
advances have been stated at amounts that would be realized
in the ordinary course of business. The provision of depreciation
and for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of
amounts considered reasonably necessary.

Note — 34.

The Company has not received any intimation from Suppliers
regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures,
if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year-end together
with interest paid or payable as required under the said Act have
not been given. Sundry creditors at the year-end are subject
to confirmation from the respective parties. The Company has
provided for all known liabilities as on the Balance Sheet Date.

Note — 35.

Deposits of T 30,00,000 (Previous Year % 30,00,000) placed with
three parties in 1991 are secured against mortgage of immovable
properties. The parties have not refunded the deposits and
securities are also not liquidated. The Company has initiated
arbitration proceedings against the parties for recovery of the
deposits. Awards have been issued in favour of the Company
against two parties for recovery of the deposit amounting to
% 18,00,000 (Previous Year % 18,00,000/) and the same has been
filed in the High Court for decree. The Court process is going
on. No provision has been made for the same in the books of
accounts.

Note — 36.

In case of revenue from Overseas Distribution of Film ‘Gandhi’,
the accounting of profits and distribution fee has been done on
the basis of receipt of statement from the overseas Agency. The
Company has received the statement till 31.12.2017 and the
same has been accounted.

Note — 37.

The Company has given Commercial/Residential Premises on
operating lease. Under this arrangement, generally refundable
interest-free deposit have been taken. In respect of above
arrangements, lease rentals receivable are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year and are included Rental
of % 1,74,05,960 (Previous Year % 1,70,45,617) (Disclosed under
Other Income in Note No.19). The initial direct cost in respect of
operating lease are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The company’s significant leasing arrangements are in
respect of residential flats, office premises, plant and machinery
and equipment taken on lease. The arrangements range between
1 year and 30 years generally and are usually renewable by
mutual consent or mutually agreeable terms. Under these
arrangements, generally refundable interest free deposits have
been given. In respect of above arrangements, lease rentals
payable are recognized in the Statements of Profit and Loss
for the year and included under Rent (Disclosed under Other
Expenses in Note No.23). The aggregate rental expenses of all
the operating leases for the year are ¥ 1,33,31,960 (Previous
Year % 1,35,63,133)

e fhed g erer fofdes



Tfyr oAt &

Amount in %

fecgoly — 38. IEATAT TFE GIATT (YE)

Note — 38. Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

31 AT 2018 31 AT 2017
. Lol LA
Particulars
As at March  As at March
31,2018 31,2017
TAT H el & PRUT 3cUea Blrdrell Deferred tax Assets arising on account of
e & aRgsafa - timing difference due to —
A& Depreciation 80,47,565 62,80,737
IR T F O yrau=T Provision for Employee Benefits 2,59,20,572 2,83,75,613
dfeey wuit/xuit & fow grayue Provision for Doubtful Debts/Loans 7,44,20,571 7,30,14,948
I R T Efe Brought forward Losses - 3,75,57,244
Ireyfa #T IRwETRTA (LT) Net deferred tax assets | 10,83,88,708 | 14,52,28,542
-]

el a¥ A AT A aREFIfaEr ( 3,68,39,834) dr R
{Roe a¥ (3 2,18,77,121)}.

fecgoft — 39. Faf9T el & gdcrnIoT
Raiféar GexursersT — TET Reed R o HiHes.

Deferred Tax Asset accounted in current year (X 3,68,39,834)
{Previous Year (% 2,18,77,121)}.

Note — 39. Related Party Disclosures

Reporting Enterprise — National Film Development Corporation
Ltd.

UAE Ydud it - Key Management Personnel —

&. qisﬁ CIGIRGIE) il TaYg g a. | Ms. Nina Lath Gupta Managing Director

o ggﬁ Ta.3. A9 Acs (faa) b. | Ms. N J Shaikh Director Finance
a4 O, | AT o 31 c. | Mr. C P Gupta Chief Financial Officer
g | NS Sud wualr gfRa d. | Mr. E.J. Paul Company Secretary

Hag usil & Y A P AT ot 6 T wH-18 & 3ded
IS & —

qgwm?rmﬁm

Transactions with the Related Parties as required by AS-18 is
given below —
iy st A

Key Management Personnel Amount in ¥

e e Name of the Director A & FT Tga:lt::t?;n 2017-18  2016-17
g e ars I, udy BRww m;":;:gl‘gti?engta URATAS | Remuneration |  24,92,424 |  24,46,482
Ms. N J Shaikh .

g @S AW, FRE (@F) | pirector (Finance) uIRSAB | Remuneration | 22,70,178 | 21,72,260
A 4. o T, g o Mr. C P Gupta EUTEIEC

31y Chief Financial Officer Remuneration 9,29,393 13,84,602
(&g a i @ 30.11.2017) | (Date of Resignation 30.11.2017)

A .3.UTd, HFIAT R ggn?p‘;ri/aglecretary uiRHfAP | Remuneration | 16,97,124 |  16,20,255

National Film Development Corporation Limited
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fecauly — 40. 3 ufd ™WR

Note — 40. Earnings per Share

Tfyr oAt &

Amount in ¥
fRavor Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
. ! Net Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equit
SRR JRIURGT B ACT Y A/ (@) Sharerol d(ers ) S 14,54,37,391 | (1,91,00,252)
;E:E,r *» ;%p;r sfFgdr A & 9a 3faa &. \éV;;%h:Ec;g;/erage No. of Equity Shares for 45.39,985 45,39,985
¥ v sfFady I v 9T 3iga @. | Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares for

E( a%i < ) Diluted (EPS) 45,39,985 45,39,985
MR FT 3T HeT Nominal Value of Share 100 100
ufa ¥R 3 - A Equity Per Share — Basic 32.03 (4.21)
ufd RR 31T - aged Earnings Per Share — Diluted 32.03 (4.21)

feoguly — 41. AU F TIRHTAS &1 TaRoT

Note — 41. Particulars of Directors Remuneration

f_{aor Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
uger e - uisf@e Managing Directors Remuneration 22,78,146 22,38,174
sfut &l 37RAETeT Contribution to EPF 2,14,278 2,08,308
e (o) — aisfdes Remuneration of Director (Finance) 20,85,054 19,96,646
SHIUH BT ST Contribution to EPF 1,85,124 1,75,614
feogoft - 42. Note — 42.

HYAST Tare 2013 & WREMHET 5 (i)(m), (viii) b,5 (viii) 5 e and
5 (A) () & Risger 3 & Ui€ 2 & At & o Ak
AT, STl T SUGS .

Additional information pursuant to the provisions of paragraphs
5(i)(m),5(viii) b,5 (viii) e and 5 (A) (j)of the part Il of Schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable.

i) 9§ Fifes 7 i) Prior Period ltems TAﬂmoﬁﬁng
_{aor Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

qd e 3 Prior Period Income = 83,66,256

cEfr Fifaa I Prior Period Expenses 95,40,573 -

T ¥ & R T 95,40,573 & R 3afy ooy & Swet
342 oM@ H q@ A emgw%

Rawer z 54 @ (Ao :83,66,2562ﬁr§>§t[rimf¢rm
%ﬁ%;ss.som%ﬂwﬁﬁﬂwﬁ%

? ).

43t affe RAE 2017-18

During the current year there is a Net prior period expenses of
%95,40,573 which includes prior period depreciation of ¥ 42 Lakhs
and reversal of income of previous year ¥ 54 Lakhs (Previous
year — Net prior period income of ¥ 83,66,256 which includes
refund of old balances from Gratuity fund of ¥ 83.50 Lakhs).

W frear famra Ao fafdes



ii) Earnings in Foreign Exchange

aEg3il/3ReRT W AT 3mdhe THH

Tfer oAt &

Amountin?

2016-17

ii) Earnings in Foreign Exchange

Particulars

Export on goods/rights calculated on FOB basis 1,42,71,465 52,50,425
YR W A aman
iii) faeeft aqem F @+ iii) Expenditure in Foreign Currency UAﬁmouE nt ingg

2016-17

Particulars

el I /gsaar < Foreign Tours/Participation Expenses 2,97,07,884 69,16,177
iv) oET gReTHl Y spErar iv) Payment to Auditors UAfﬂmount mﬁ
Ravor Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

o@r gdietor fr Hr g Audit Fees 4,50,000 4,50,000
Y @ Udeor HT B Tax Audit Fees 1,00,000 1,00,000
feogoft — 43 Note — 43.

) : R BT /) f £ ‘ The Company has received a special grant of 310 Lacs in the
%;TOB# ;:T agam?aﬁ % 1%1‘@ ;q?ﬁ R ?;Er g Ua_i year 2014-15 from a private party for encouraging and promoting

TS ueT & % 10 @ & 99w gemdar uig €. 39 eradr
FUAT T TH

:
%’

National Film Development Corporation Limited

new talent in the realm of film making, production and distribution
at the Film Bazaar. The Company has utilized the said grant
for providing short term interest free loan to an Award winning
producer to fund post production and distribution expenses.
The Company accounted the grant received as Income in the
financial year 2015-16 and the loan given is disclosed in Loans
and Advances.

Note — 44.

Doordarshan has been sourcing films from NFDC for telecast on
DD-1 and DD India since 1980 to 2008. Deductions were made
by Doordarshan from the amounts due to NFDC. Attempts have
been made to recover the amounts due and necessary documents
required by DD have also been shared with them. Since both
Doordarshan & NFDC are under the administrative Ministry of
Information & Broadcasting, it was decided to resolve the issue
through arbitration. The Ministry of Information and Broadcasting
vide their letter dated 23rd February, 2010 nominated Ms. Somi
Tandon as the Sole Arbitrator for settlement of various matters
pending resolution between NFDC and Doordarshan. There have
been constant follow up by the Company and the Ministry of I&B
has also instructed Doordarshan in 11th April 2017 to settle the
dispute at the earliest. Also on 25th January 2018 Ministry of 1&B
has constituted a 3 member committee for resolving the disputes
for recovery of outstanding dues. The Company expects that the
matter will be resolved and no provision is considered necessary
towards the amounts due from Doordarshan.
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fecqoly - 46.

o af & TRl &1 38 a§ i grgfaat & @y & & ol
STEl @9 &, T8 e gaffesor Y fedm I

e ARt )

TEATETY

(THIRTA
008730T4)

A FAR AAT
TH. 7. 084503

T - A

feaip — 26 RAdeR 2018

National Film Development Corporation Limited

s & fow A & IR A

T AW
facers (fas)
BRG]
.07348075

£ qfer

Hu=r giog

TH. &, ThEy
4521

Note — 46.

Previous year figures have been re-classified to confirm with
current year presentation, wherever applicable.

Signature to
Notes Financial

Statements
For TASKY Manoj Kumar
ASSOCIATES, anol

Pingua
Chartered Managing Director
Accountants ond

(FRN 008730N) DIN No. 01732177

Manoj Kumar
Sharma
Partner

M. No. 084503

Place — Mumbai
Dated — 26th September 2018

For and on behalf of Board

N.J. Shaikh
Director (Finance)
DIN No.07348075

E.J. Paul
Company
Secretary
M. No. FCS 4521
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To

The Members of

National Film Development Corporation Limited
Mumbai

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
National Film Development Corporation Limited (“the Company”)
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

It was pointed out by CAG that Para 1 and Para 2 under the
heading ‘Emphasis Matters’ in the Independent Auditor’'s
Report dated 04/10/2018, provides certain issues which in
their opinion is in the nature of qualification and therefore, the
‘Emphasis Matters’ under Para 1 and Para 2 are in the nature
of qualification therefore, such matters are being stated under
‘Basis of Qualification’ in this revised report and therefore, it
shall form part of qualifications, therefore there is no change in
financial statements on which the Independent Auditor’s Report
dated 04/10/2018 was issued.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
with respect to the preparation of thesefinancial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these (Standalone)
financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

e fhed g erer fofdes
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3R & %ol & fow Fafaa o= & 3
& S A | @ ST WA & I §. % 10,48,76,511.53

National Film Development Corporation Limited

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
aboutthe amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial
control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company
has in place an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such
controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

(a) The Balances in Sundry Debtors, Loans and Advances,
Deposits and Current Liabilities including few balances
in respect of Income Tax, Service Tax, VAT, including
outstanding balances for last few years are subject to
confirmation and consequential adjustment, if any, on the
reconciliation. The financial impact, if any, is unascertained.
(Refer Note 26)

(b) The company does not calculate any interest payable under
section 16 of the Micro Small and medium enterprises
development act 2006, therefore no interest liability was
computed in absence of relevant information and an impact
on financial statement is unascertained.

(c) Ministry of Information and Broadcasting have granted
fund for production of regional film — ‘Yashodhara Ek
Kavya’ to NFDC. NFDC has incurred a total expenditure
of 1,39,95,481 on this project till 31/03/2018. However the
management had taken a view that completion of film is not
possible and had decided to shelve the project and wrote
off the project cost by debiting the account of ‘Advance from
Ministry of 1&B’ and crediting such amount to ‘Inventory —
Yashodhara Ek Kaavya — Regional Film’project. NFDC had
not obtained any prior approval from Ministry of Information
and Broadcasting (funding entity) for writing off/shelving of
the project. Further there is nothing on record to show that
ministry has approved the waiver of recovery of money they
have granted for such film project therefore, such amount
should have been written off by debiting it to Statement of
Profit and Loss and crediting ‘Inventory — Yashodhara Ek
Kaavya — Regional Film’. As a result of this the company has
overstated profit by 1,39,95,481.

(d) No provision is made in respect of deposit of ¥ 30 Lacs
placed with three parties in 1991 which are secured against
mortgage of certain immovable properties. These parties
have not refunded the deposits and the relevant securities
are not liquidated. The Company has initiated arbitration
proceedings against the parties for recovery of deposits
and Arbitration awards have been made in favour of the
Company in Mar 2007 for two parties for recovery of deposit
of ¥ 18 Lacs, however still the payments have not been
recovered due to pending proceedings in High Court. For
the balance amount of ¥ 12 Lacs arbitration proceedings are
still continuing. (Refer Note No 35).

(e) In normal course, the company is making provision for

bad and doubtful debt for any debts outstanding for more
than 3 years, in respect to non govt debtors as regular

43rd Annual Report 2017-18

83



84

oo ¥ ¥ 1,31,79,29,562 & CelaR SATURY
ROT A & S TR Faematt/ Taifdat 3R g7 Seferi W

(=)

3
%
|
:
'
:
14

~ s
n
SFe
&
o
w

3T Pl dUT AATHB ITITRATI W
Rare

1. o/ar fF BET 9RT AR gRT duah fafags oRafda
T GG, JFRAT 143 & 3UURT (1) & 3TIIR
T, duell (Jr@r udlethl Hr RUIE) 3y 2016 (8 3HEI)
& TIY H TH 3P A & REme 3 gur 4 & sfeafag
vl W “IHevedd T, Fovdd A T/ ©.

2. otar s T & 9rT 143 (3) H 30T ¥, & SUABHGER
Rae e & fF -

®. TAS d EN FIAU IR T Ui Ry S gAY
TYUT AFADNT TAT AT & HFER AR or@r aleTor &
forr 3masas .

AgaAt 2014 & AIH 7 & TU yer A, H &

g dfh (YR 164 (2) Afefhdua 463 (§) fedid
5.6.2015) T a5Tg ¥ HIHRT HFYAT U 9] dAel Il
31 AT 2017 & fohedl fACl &t JaeiT 164 (2) &
3T AT UTT A FT UH & A 55T

434} a1ffes RA1E 2017-18

practice. The total trade receivables of ¥ 1,31,79,29,562
includes debtors for a sum of ¥ 10,48,76,511.53 pertaining
to government department/agencies and theses debtors
are outstanding for the period more than 5 years and were
considered good by the company. Such long outstanding of
debtors indicate recovery to be doubtful, and also there is
ongoing dispute with Doordarshan on recoverability, yet no
provision was made. The company needs to adopt a policy
for making provisions in respect to such debts and a realistic
presentation of recoverable should be made.

(f) There was a purchase invoice for the month of June 2017
which was posted in the month of February 2018 on which
service tax was paid amounting to ¥ 20,84,583, input credit
of such service tax was not availed as due date of filing of
Form Tran-1 on GST portal was already passed. Also such
amount is wrongly recorded as Service Tax Receivable under
current assets instead of debiting it to statement of profit and
loss. Such delay in receiving invoice and booking the same
results into loss to company for a sum of ¥ 20,84,583.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, except for the possible effects of
the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, the aforesaidfinancial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2018, and its Profit/Loss and its Cash Flow for the
year ended on that date.

Emphasis Matters

NIL.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2016 (“the Order”), as amended, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that,
subject to our qualifications remarks stated above:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books;

c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account

d. in our opinion, the aforesaidfinancial statements comply
with the Accounting Standards specified under section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

e. Since Section 164(2) does not apply to Government
Company (due to Notification No 463(E) dated 5.6.2015),
the question of any of the directors being disqualified as on
March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act does not arise.
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f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 25 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts
including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

3. Report required by section 143 (5) of the Act, is annexed
separately as “Annexure C”.

Tasky Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number —
FRN 008730N

Manoj Kumar Sharma
Partner
Membership number — 084503

Place — Bhopal
Date — 31/10/2018
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Annexure — "A" to the
Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to Independent Auditors’ Report to the
members of the Company in paragraph 1 under the heading
‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our report
of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2018 —

(i)(a)

(b)

()

(i)

(v)

(vii)(a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing
full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets;

The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by
the management, which in our opinion is reasonable
having regard to the size of the company and nature
of its business. As per physical verification carried out
by management some fixed assets are not found in
physical verification value of which is written off by the
management in current year’s financial statement and
value of such fixed assets which have been written off
after physical verification amounts to 1,86,605.

The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the
name of the company except in the case of Purchase of
Office Premises at Sputnik included in the Gross Block
(aggregating to T 2,76,539) where there is only Share
Certificate issued by the Housing Society in favour of
NFDC.

The management has conducted the physical
verification of inventory at reasonable intervals. There
is no discrepancy noticed on physical verification of the
inventory as compared to books.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the Register
maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (C) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company has not given
any loan or done investment within the meaning of
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013.Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with
regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not
applicable.

As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has
not been specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of
the activities carried on by the company.

According to information and explanations given to us
and on the basis of our examination of the books of
account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-
Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of
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(b)

Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory
dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears
as at March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six
months from the date on when they become payable
except in case of para (c) of “ Basis of Qualifications”
provided in our audit report.

According to the information and explanation given to
us, there are no dues of, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax outstanding on
account of any dispute.

The Income tax dues which are not deposited on account of
disputed matters are as under —
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Income -tax Act, Income Tax and 19532214 12831534 Asst Year 2013-14 Commissioner of Income
1961 Interest Tax— Appeals
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(Finance Act,1994) | CREDIT 2014-15
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Service Tax Act Office of commissioner

: SERVICE TAX 15850899 Financial Year 2013-14 of GST & central excise
(Finance Act,1994) appeals
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(viii)

(x)

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in the repayment of loan to Banks, financial Institution,
Central Government or debenture holders.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the
information and explanations given by the management,
the company has not raised any money by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and term Loans during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the
information and explanations given by the management,
we report that no fraud by the Company or on the
company by its officers or employees has been noticed
or reported during the year.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the
information and explanations given by the management,
since the Company is a government company provisions
of provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act does not apply and hence not
commented upon;

43rd Annual Report 2017-18

87



88

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

T - murer
fear — 31/10/2018

FAR T A TE Ut AR hueh FE § 3T R F
UGt Frellsl 4 (xii) hUaAT U P el ald.

T T H, et Tafda uel & @y @Il oA
PUATST Tae 2013 & JFAT 177 3R 188 & U=t
& 3gwu ¢ 3N o 6wy yafad oar aecst #
ngm;mmm%.ﬁ?mﬁwvﬁﬁﬁwaﬁﬁ

& Fellol 3 (xv) & UTTUT HUT W
PROT 34 W P feraolt A& v 718,

A
e

TR [T H duAr b R d& 3 E=3ar vae 1934

a1 IFSEA AR —
TH3NTA 0087 30T

FArS AR AT

! ) (UrEaR)
FRRT 9T - 084503

434} a1ffes RA1E 2017-18

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Place — Bhopal
Date — 31/10/2018

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the
Financial Statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the
information and explanations given by the management,
the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under review. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the
information and explanations given by the management,
the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

In our opinion, the company is not required to be
registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause
3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company
and hence not commented upon.

Tasky Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number —
FRN 008730N

Manoj Kumar Sharma

Partner
Membership number — 084503
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Annexure — "B" to the Auditors’
Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of National Film Development Corporation Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

Subject to our comments below, In our opinion, the Company
has, adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The company needs to strengthen the internal financial controls
over the following areas of business activities.

1. Internal audit is being done by Independent firm of Chartered
Accountants. There is a need to strengthen the verification
of statutory compliances. However the scope needs to
be enlarged to strengthen the financial and other controls
especially in field of systems audit and review of internal
controls.

2. The Internal control System in respect of procurement of
services is generally weak and in various such procurements
proper tendering procedure in respect to the PRODUCTION
projects was not followed and the tendering process has
been avoided in the name of SOPs for enlistment of creative
agency and selection of creative agency, however enlistment
and selection of creative agencies does not bar tendering
for the competitive prices among the enlisted agencies and
the SOPs does not provide any exemption from competitive
bidding from such enlisted/selected agencies. These facts
indicate that the absence of tendering procedure creates an
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inherent weakness in such procurement system, which may
cause additional expenditure by the company so as to affect
its cost effective performance.

Tasky Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number —
FRN 008730N

Manoj Kumar Sharma
Partner
Membership number — 084503

Place — Bhopal
Date — 31/10/2018
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Annexure — “C” to the Auditors’
Report

Report under Section 143 (5) of the Act

Based on the verification of records of the Company and based
on information and explanation given to us, we give below a

report on the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor-
General of India in F.Y. 2016-17 in terms of Section 143(5) of

the Act.
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Place — Bhopal
Date — 31/10/2018

Firm’s registration number —
FRN 008730N

Manoj Kumar Sharma
Partner

Membership number — 084503
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National Film Development Corporation Limited

Comments Of The Comptroller
And Auditor General of India
Under Section 143(6) (B) of The
Companies Act, 2013 on The
Financial Statements Of National
Film Development Corporation
Limited For The Year Ended
31st March 2018

The preparation of financial statement of National Film
Development Corporation Limited for the year ended 31st March
2018 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under Companies Act 2013 (Act) is the responsibility
of the management of the company. The Statutory Auditor
appointed by the Comptroller And Auditor General of India under
Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion
on the financial statement under Section 143 of the Act based on
independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing
prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Act. This is stated to
have been done by them vide their Revised Audit Report dated
31/10/2018 which supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated
4/10/2018.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller And Auditor General of India, have
conducted a supplementary audit of the financial statements
of National Film Development Corporation Limited for the year
ended 31st March 2018 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act.
This supplementary audit has been carried out independently
without access to the working papers of the Statutory auditors
and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditors and
company personnel and a selective examination of some of the
accounting records. The Audit Report has been revised by the
Statutory Auditor to give effect to some of my audit observations
raised during supplementary audit.

In addition, | would like to highlight the following significant
matters under Section 143(6)(b) of the Act which have come to
my attention and which in my view are necessary for enabling a
better understanding of the financial statements and the related
audit report.

A. Comments on Financial Position
Assets

Current Assets

Trade Receivables (Note 14) % 111.88 crore

The trade receivables includes an amount of T 4.68 crore
recoverable from Doordarshan pending for more than 4 years
and are under dispute. A reference is also invite to Note 44 to
Accounts where Company has acknowledged ongoing dispute
with Doordarshan regarding recoverability of dues. Accounting
policy (2F) of the Company states that in respect of Government
dues, provision for doubtful debts are made to the extent
considered not recoverable in the opining of the management.
Since the amount due from Doordarshan is pending for recover
for more than four years and under dispute. Company should
have made provision of ¥ 4.68 crore for doubtful debts.

Non provision of doubtful debts in respect of dues recoverable

from Doordarshan has resulted in overstatement of Profit for the
year and Trade Receivable by % 4.68 crore.
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B. Comments on independent Auditor’s Report

Considering the impact of comment A above and comments
No. (c) and (f) under ‘Basis for Qualified opinion’ made by the
Independent Auditor in his audit report, the profit for the year
(¥ 14.54 crore) would decrease by T 6.29 crore as depicted in
statement of profit and loss account of the company. The profit is
impacted by 43.26 percent in comparison to profit of ¥ 14.54 crore
for the year. Hence, the financial statements of the company for
the year 2017-18 do not present a ‘true and fair view’ and it was
not proper on the part of Independent Auditor to have provided
an assurance that the financial presented a ‘true and fair view’

C. Comments on cash Flow

The Cash Flow Statement of the Company was deficient to the
following extent —

1. In accordance with Para 6 of Accounting Standard-3, term
deposits of T 45.13 crore (Note 15) with original maturity of
more that 3 months and terms deposits of T 8.28 crore (Note
15) held as margin money against bank guarantee, should
not have been included in the cash and cash equivalents in
the cash flow statement. These term deposits should have
been included under cash flow from investing activities.

2. The Company has shown an interest of ¥ 4.51 crore on
investment in term deposit in cash flow from operation
activates. In accordance with para 30 of Accounting
Standard-3, the same should have been shown as cash flow
from investing activities.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 24/01/2019
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National Film Development Corporation Limited

Reply to the comments of the
Comptroller and Auditor General
of India under Section143(6)
(b) of the Companies Act, 2013
on the Financial Statements
of National Film Development
Corporation Limited for the year
ended 31st March, 2018

Para (A)

As per the accounting policy of the Corporation on Provision for
Doubtful Debts in respect of Government dues, Provisions are
made to the extent considered not recoverable in the opinion
of the management. However in this case both the parties
i.e NFDC and Prasar Bharti through an agreement dated
8th August, 2012 appointed Ms. S. Tandon as the arbitrator.
Necessary follow up were made by the Corporation with Prasar
Bharti for commencing the Arbitration proceedings but there was
no response from Prasar Bharti. The Joint Secretary (Films) of
Ministry of 1&B had issued a D.O letter No. 202/22/2009-F(PSU)
dated 11th April, 2017 to Prasar Bharti to settle the issue within
30 days as the same has already been delayed for so long. This
was followed by letter No. NFDC/DDK/D(F) 2017 dated 29th
August,2017 by Director (Finance) to Ministry of I&B requesting
for initiation of arbitration proceedings at the earliest. Further
the Ministry of Information & Broadcasting vide Office Order
No. 202/22/2009-F(PSU) dated 25th January, 2018 constituted
a 3 member committee comprising of officers of Ministry who
were (i) Shri Ali Raza Rizvi, AS&FA, Ministry of 1&B (ii) Shri Rohit
Kumar Parmar, Senior Economic Advisor, Ministry of 1&B (iii) Shri
Ashok Kumar Parmar JS (Films), Ministry of I&B for resolving
the long pending dispute between NFDC & Doordarshan for
recovery of outstanding dues of the Corporation and this was
followed by Director (Finance) letter No. NFDC/D(F)/2018/232
dated 25th July,2018 addressed to the Ministry of I&B requesting
the Ministry that a meeting of the Committee may be convened at
the earliest for resolution of the disputes which was followed by
sending a reminder vide letter No. NFDC/D(F)/2018/240 dated
1st November, 2018.

Since the Corporation is hopeful of recovering the dues from
Prasar Bharati, hence provision for doubtful debts was not made.
Earlier also we wish to bring to the notice of Share Holders
that the Corporation was successful in holding the arbitration
proceedings for settlement of dues between NFDC and Prasar
Bharati in the year 2006.

Para (B)

Reply by statutory auditors :
Please refer to Para (e) of the audit report dated 31/10/2018,
which reads as —

“In normal course, the company is making provision for bad and
doubtful debt for any debts outstanding for more than 3 years, in
respect to non govt debtors as regular practice. The total trade
receivables of ¥ 1,31,79,29,562 includes debtors for a sum of
¥ 10,48,76,511.53 pertaining to government department/
agencies and theses debtors are outstanding for the period more
than 5 years and were considered good by the company. Such

43rd Annual Report 2017-18

95



96

HCEEUE Al ovTar & &, 3 3 ageh & fow gueda & &y
Targ o Ior @ & T Y 5% o 310 d& T S
foRT I, U BT 3H ORE & KON & Fa9 F Afd a9 3R

% 3R
2018-19 & fow ®% gRada R S € A 3 I AR
R S T &

434} a1ffes RA1E 2017-18

long outstanding of debtors indicate recovery to be doubtful, and
also there is ongoing dispute with Doordarshan on recoverability,
yet no provision was made. The company needs to adopt a policy
for making provisions in respect to such debts and a realistic
presentation of recoverable should be made.”

The above referred Para of Audit Report clearly indicated a lack
of policy and it does not states the quantum of provision which
has not been made by the company and presumptions of debts
to be outstanding for more than 4 years to Doordarshan may
be a doubtful debt cannot make auditor’s to view the Financial
Statement not to be “True and Fair”.

Moreover, impact of profit for 43.26% computed by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India cannot be the sole
basis for taking a view to the effect that Financial Statement do
not show “True and Fair” view. The auditor has to see the totality
of circumstances and in case of qualification “a mathematical
view” cannot be the sole governing principle. Therefore, we do
not agree with the comment of Comptroller and Auditor General
of India so far as they relate to the Independent Auditor’s Report.

Para (C)

The Presentation in Cash Flow Statement has been made
in consultation with Statutory Auditors of the Company. The
changes if any to be made in the year 2018-19 will be done in
consultation with them.

e fhed g erer fofdes



by NEDC

BEradl 3w $fEar fafeser, &8 #Afaw, Aew Hex, of HA ¥ Vs, e, HFIS 400 018
Discovery of India Building, Nehru Centre, 6th Floor, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400 018
T 91226628 8288 | F 91 22 2495 2262
E nfdc@nfdcindia.com | www.nfdcindia.com
CIN U92100MH1975G01022994



